

NEAR EAST UNIVERSITY TURKISH REPUBLIC OF NORTH CYPRUS INSTITUTE OF GRADUATE STUDIES

NURSING DEPARTMENT

THE EFFECT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON STUDENTS' SEXUAL LIFE AND CONTRACEPTIVE METHOD USE

M.Sc. THESIS

MEMUNAT OLAYINKA ODUWAYE

NICOSIA

March, 2023

NEAR EAST UNIVERSITY

INSTITUTE OF GRADUATE STUDIES

DEPARTMENT OF NURSING

THE EFFECT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON STUDENTS' SEXUAL LIFE AND CONTRACEPTIVE METHOD USE

M.Sc. THESIS

Memunat Olayinka Oduwaye

Supervisor

Prof. Dr. Gülşen Vural

NICOSIA

March, 2023

Approval

We certify that we have read the thesis submitted by Memunat Olayinka Oduwaye titled **"The Effect of Covid-19 Pandemic on Student's Sexual Life and Contraceptives Method use"** and that in our combined opinion it is fully adequate, in scope and in quality, as a thesis for the degree of Master of Educational Sciences.

Examining Committee

Name-Surname

Head of the Committee: Yard. Doç.Dr. Rojjin Mamuk

Committee Member*: Yard. Doç.Dr. Betül Mammadow

Supervisor: Prof. Dr. Gülşen Vural.....

Approved by the Head of the Department

Signature

0.10.3/202.3

Prof. Dr. Gülşen Vural

Head of Department

Approved by the Institute of Granduate studies

...../...../20....

Prof. Dr. Kemal Hüsnü Can Başer



*This will be amended to accommodate three committee members if this is a PhD Thesis.

3

DECLARATION

I hereby declare that this is the original work undertaken by Memunat Olayinka Oduwaye in partial fulfillment of my master of science in Nursing and that the student has not made any utilization of sources, materials, or support that are not explicitly and completely acknowledged in the text any direct citation or source of ideas has been named in the text by the author, with date and page numbers immediately following, and complete details are supplied in a reference list at the conclusion of the work.

Memunat Olayinka Oduwaye

March/2023

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

I give God the glory for getting this thesis done. Special thanks to my supervisor Prof. Dr. Gulşen Vural who has been of help throughout the course of this study. I appreciate my family and friends' for their great support. Also, my appreciation to Prof. Dr. Rojjin Mamuk and Prof. Dr. Betul Mamadov for their useful corrections and contributions during my proposal jury. I am most grateful.

Thanks for all your encouragement.

Memunat Olayinka Oduwaye

Abstract

The Effect of Covid-19 Pandemic on Student's Sexual Life and Contraceptives Method Use

Memunat, Olayinka Oduwaye Masters, Department of Nursing March, 2023, 79 pages

Purpose: The goal of this study is to seek and explore the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on students' sexual lives and contraceptive method use in Near East University Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus. The purpose of the study was to find out how the COVID-19 pandemic affected the sexual lives, behavior of the students and the contraception method they used to collect data.

Methodology: A primary study was used for this study and a close ended questionnaire was used as a tool to collect data. A descriptive study method was used with the formula for probability population method to select 367 university students for this study. The sample size from the faculty of law department of international law was 158 students, from faculty of Economics and Administrative Science Department of Banking and finance was 128, Faculty of Arts and Science Department of English language and literature was 81 students. Data collection was achieved from the students in the school premises during break time and few copies was distributed to the students through mobile link due to the social distance during the covid-19 pandemic.

Findings: The study discovered that during the pandemic, Majority of the students utilized contraception to prevent unintended pregnancies and COVID-19. The contraception methods they used are condoms with 46%, oral contraceptive pills with 16%, intrauterine devices with 25%, injections with 5%, implants with 3%, diaphragms with 2%, and the withdrawal method with 3%. The study revealed that the students encountered problems with the use of contraceptive methods. The study revealed that 60% of the students had closures and cuts to their sexual and reproductive health services; 19% of the students had economic difficulties; and 7% of the student's lacked information and guidance on the use of contraceptives. The study also discovered that, the student's sexual desires increased by 25% and decreased by 60% during the pandemic. The study also revealed that before the pandemic, students who

have sexual activity ones in five days was 3.8%, and during the pandemic there was decreased of sexual activity with 0.3%. This study shows the comparison on the Sexual desire, Orgasm, Lubrication level, Arousal, Satisfaction, Pain and Erection scores by the effect of covid-19 on student's sexual desire during pandemic that there was a statistically significant change (p<0.05). The findings revealed a high effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on students' sexual lives, behavior and the contraception method used. The statistically methods used in this study are Kruskal-Wallis H Test and Chi square test.

Objective: The global pandemic of COVID-19 put an extreme strain on the world's healthcare systems, making it difficult for these systems to continue providing their usual services. On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO) announced that COVID-19 had reached epidemic proportions. There have been several precautions taken by the government to reduce the possibility of the sickness spreading. Restrictions on travel, forced quarantines for travelers, social distance, prohibitions on public gatherings, closure of schools and colleges, closure of businesses, self-isolation, requesting individuals to work from home, curfews, and lockdowns are some of the measures that have been taken. The restriction affected students' sexual lives and the use of the contraceptive.

Conclusion: Based on the results of this study .This research's finding may provide a roadmap for enhancing general public health outcomes in the TRNC and among university students to create more awareness about preventing the COVID-19 pandemic transmission and contraceptives method use.

Key words: Covid-19, sexuality, contraceptive use, university students and TRNC.

YAKIN DOĞU ÜNİVERSİTESİ BİLİMSEL ARAŞTIRMALAR ETİK KURULU

ARAŞTIRMA PROJESİ DEĞERLENDİRME RAPORU

Toplantı Tarihi	:28.04.2022		
Toplantı No	:2022/102		
Proje No	:1552		

Yakın Doğu Üniversitesi Hemşirelik Fakültesi öğretim üyelerinden Prof. Dr. Gülşen Vural'ın sorumlu araştırmacısı olduğu, YDU/2022/102-1552 proje numaralı ve "The effect of COVID-19 pandemic on students' sexual life and contraceptive method use" başlıklı proje önerisi kurulumuzca değerlendirilmiş olup, etik olarak uygun bulunmuştur.

L. Laur Prof. Dr. Şanda Çalı

Yakın Doğu Üniversitesi Bilimsel Araştırmalar Etik Kurulu Başkanı

Kurul Üyesi	Toplantıya Katılım	Karar	
	Katıldı(✔)/ Katılmadı(X)	Onay(✓)/ Ret(X)	
Prof. Dr. Tamer Yılmaz	1	\checkmark	
Prof. Dr. Şahan Saygı	 . 	/	
Prof. Dr. Nurhan Bayraktar	/	\checkmark	
Prof. Dr. Mehmet Özmenoğlu	1		
Prof. Dr. İlker Etikan	1	/	
Doç. Dr. Mehtap Tınazlı	1	/	
Doç. Dr. Nilüfer Galip Çelik	1		
Doç. Dr. Emil Mammadov	1	1	
Doç. Dr. Ali Cenk Özay	X	X	

https://etikkurul.neu.edu.tr/

Table of Contents

3
4
5
5
6
10
12
13

CHAPTER 1

1.1	Introduction	.14
1.2	The background of the study	19
1.3	The aim of the study	20
1.4	The significance of the study	21

CHAPTER 2

2.1 Literature review.	22
2.1 Effect of covid-19 pandemic on Sexuality and reproductive health	22
2.2 How the COVID-19 pandemic affected the use of contraceptive methods	25

CHAPTER 3

3.1 Methodology		
3.1 Research Design	30	
3.2 Participants/Population and Sample		

3.3 Data collection tools/materials	30
3.4 Data Analysis plan	31
3.5 Sample size	31
3.6 Inclusion criteria	33
3.7 Ethical considerations	33

CHAPTER 5

5.1 Discussion

CHAPTER 6

Results and recommendations

6.1 Conclusion	.62
6.2 Recommendation	63
References	64
Appendices	70

List of Tables

Table 1. The socio-demographic characteristics of the students
Table 2. Student's having Covid-19 vaccination and Disease Experience
Table 3. Student's Sexual Relationship Experience Before and During Pandemic
Table 4. Student's Sexual Activity Frequency Before and During Pandemic
Table 5. The effect of covid-19 pandemic on student's sexual desire and habits
Table 6. The effect of covid-19 pandemic on student's sexual behaviors
Table 7. The fear of the students of having sexual relationship during the pandemic
Table 8. Changes seen in Sexuality of the Student's before and during the pandemic38
Table 9. Effect of covid-19 on student's sexuality
Table 10.Contraceptives Methods used by the student's during the pandemic40
Table 11. Problems with the use of the contraceptive methods
Table 12. Student's having sexual intercourse without the use of contraceptives
methods42
Table 13. Methods used in the absence of contraceptives
Table 14. The types of contraceptive method students easily got accessed during the
pandemic43
Table 15.The experience of unwanted pregnancy during the pandemic43
Table 16. The method used for ending the unwanted pregnancy44
Table 17. The problem faced with the termination of pregnancy44
Table 18. The effect of pandemics on the student's sexual life and sexual compatibility44
Table 19. Comparison of covid-19 experience on the student's sexual habits45
Table 20. The effect of student's covid-19 experience on the orgasm
Table 21. The effect of covid-19 on the student's lubrication46
Table 22. The effect of covid-19 on the students erection
Table 23. Comparison of the students contraceptive method use during the pandemic by the
Covid-19 experience
Table 24. Comparison of the contraceptive methods used by the student's had covid-
19

Table 25. Comparison of the problem students faced with contraceptive used during covid-19
by the covid-19 experience
Table 26. Comparison of the method student's used in the absence of contraceptive method
during covid-1949
Table 27. Comparison of the student's having covid-19 vaccination and method used in
abscess to contraceptives
Table 28. Comparison of the students fear of having sexual relationship and contraceptive
method use
Table 29. Comparison of students having Covid-19 vaccination by the fear of having
relationship51
Table 30. Comparison of students having Covid-19 Vaccination by department or
faculties
Table 31. Comparison of student's having covid-19 vaccination according to chronic
disease

List of Abbreviations

COVID-19: Coronavirus disease of 2019 STDS: Sexually transmitted diseases **STI**: Sexually transmitted infections HIV: Human immunodeficiency virus WHO: World Health Organisation HPV: Human Papilloma Virus EC: Emergency contraception LNG-IUS: Levonorgestrel-releasing system SARC: Short-acting reversible contraception LARC: Long-acting reversible contraception **DMPA**: Depot med Roxy progesterone acetate **IUDS**: Intrauterine devices US: United States of America ACOG: American College of Obstetrics and Gynecologists SFM: Society of Family Planning ASRM: American Society for Reproductive Medicine

CHAPTER I

1.1 Introduction

The 2019 coronavirus disease (COVID-19) was initially recognized in December of that year in Wuhan, China. There have been 23,491,520 confirmed cases and 809,970 deaths across 216 countries as of August 25, 2020. (Asia, Europe, and United States of America, Africa, and Global). In order to reduce the chance of illness spreading, a number of governmental actions have been implemented. Some of these measures include restricting travel, quarantining passengers, isolating people from one another, prohibiting public gatherings, shutting down businesses and educational institutions, asking people to work from home, instituting curfews, and instituting lockdowns (Orben, Tomova, and Blakemore, 2020).

In an effort to slow the rapid spread of viral infection, authorities in various nations across the world have imposed curfews or announced lockdowns. These regulations have a detrimental impact on many aspects of society, including business, education, health, and teen access to contraceptives. (Orben, Tomova and Blakemore, 2020).

Sexuality is an essential part of being human, and sexual experience is a cornerstone of healthy adolescent development. To be healthy sexually is to be healthy in all aspects of your being: mental, emotional, and social, as well as your physical health. Sexual health necessitates a nonjudgmental and accepting perspective on sexuality and relationships and the opportunity to engage in sexual activities that are both satisfying and protective of one's physical and emotional well-being. All people need to have their sexual rights respected, protected, and fulfilled if sexual health is to be achieved and sustained (Kanem, 2019).

The health of sexually active young people is becoming increasingly problematic worldwide. Due to home confinement and school closures, it has been hypothesized that the COVID-19 epidemic has had a variety of effects on young people's sexual lives, perhaps harming their wellbeing. In addition, many areas of young people's lives have changed as a result of the absence of peer interaction. Sexual activity, close relationships, availability of contraception, defense against the human immunodeficiency virus, avoidance of unintended pregnancies, or other STIs, as well as physical, psychological, or emotional health were all negatively impacted as a result. Due to the restriction on interpersonal interaction brought about by the social distance that was enforced, sexual activity, the number of partners with whom one has sex, sexual desire and satisfaction, and the consumption of pornographic material have all been impacted. The evidence that is currently available suggests that all of these effects mostly affect younger people, such as teenagers and young adults. (Li et al., 2020).

Even among young people, the effects of the pandemic have been significant on their sexual and reproductive health. Peer relationships were disrupted as young people who had studied abroad were coaxed back home. The long-term consequences of such a severe restriction on personal space and opportunities for social interaction are unknown. Although some young people have reported a decline in sexual activity due to social isolation, roughly 30% of young people said they were still regularly meeting close friends and having sex during the first peak of the pandemic (Orben, Tomova & Blakemore, 2020).

During the pandemic's students have some problems about their sexual life. 35.9% of people in the study reported increased sexual desire during isolation, 34% reported decreased desire, and 29.1% reported it was about the same as before the pandemic (Ballester et al., 2020).

According to a study conducted in Italy, while 12.1% of men and 18.7% of women reported increased sexual desire during the lockdown, 18.2% of men and 26.4% of women reported a decrease (Panzeri et al., 2020). There was an increase in arousal experienced by 15.2% of men and 20.9% of women during the lockdown and a decrease in arousal experienced by 12.1% of men and 20.9% of women. Furthermore, women had a harder time achieving an orgasmic state than men (6.1% vs. 17.6%), while men reported achieving an orgasmic state more quickly and frequently (15.2% vs. 3.3%). (Panzeri et al., 2020). These ways include a decrease in the use of contraceptives and an increase in the unmet need for family planning, as well as an increase in unintended pregnancies, maternal mortality, induced abortions, and violence against intimate partners (Blackstone, S. R. 2017).

Pandemics do not lessen the demands of adolescents and young adults in terms of reproductive health. Due to the pandemic's effects on the environment, including as changes in parental supervision, daily routines, and availability to contraceptives and condoms, the need for contraception services may be greater than usual. Adolescent and young adult patients require contraception more than anybody, thus healthcare providers need to recognize this and implement novel strategies to meet this vital need. Because a lockdown may prevent 47 million women from having access to contraception every six months, which would lead to an extra 7 million unplanned births, ensuring access to contraception is crucial. As a result of the COVID-19 epidemic to ensure the delivery of important healthcare services

and reduce exposure risks to staff and patients, health care experts are looking at novel approaches, such as virtual care. Thankfully, contraceptive treatment may be delivered effectively over the phone and through video. While it's ideal to have a face-to-face consultation, many forms of reproductive healthcare can be delivered digitally, including contraceptive counseling, the provision of both regular and emergency contraception, and sexual risk-reduction guidance (Wilkinson, Kottke, & Berlan, 2020).

Responding to a worldwide catastrophe while maintaining reproductive health under COVID-19. Prior to the COVID-19 outbreak and lockdown, 97.7% of Nigeria's 307 primary health clinics provided family planning services. Sexual Reproductive Health Issues During the lockdown, there was a little decline to 95.8%, and then there was a further decline to 92.5%. Before to the COVID-19 epidemic and throughout the lockdown in Nigeria, family planning services were provided by 90–100% of the tested Private Health Care Systems Incorporated within States. After the shutdown, as liver fewer establishments provided assistance for foreign policy. (Adelekan et al., 2021).

Some policymakers and medical center administrators view providing contraception as a nonessential service and have issued cease-and-desist orders to numerous clinics as a result (to stop the operations). It's possible that contraception counseling and administration appointments have been rescheduled or otherwise pushed back in clinics that have remained open. Fear of contracting COVID-19 among patients and lacking public transportation options in some countries also contribute to declining clinic attendance. According to reports from stakeholders in some countries, women are less likely to visit reproductive health clinics (Aly et al., 2020; Vedam et al., 2019). Researchers in Nigeria found that contraceptive supplies were depleted during pandemics by 25.1%. Significant drops in the utilization of sexual and reproductive health services were reported in a recent survey of frontline health workers in 81 countries (Church, Gassner, & Elliott, 2020).

In contrast, contraceptive usage was shown to have a higher correlation to COVID-19-related economic instability in Burkina Faso than in Kenya, where similar correlations were found to have a lower magnitude. 14.4% of non-consumers in Kenya and 3.8% of non-consumers in Burkina Faso said that COVID-19-related factors were the reason they did not use birth control.

A physical examination, pelvic or breast examinations, STD or cervical cancer screenings are seldom necessary for the safe supply of contraception, which mostly depends on a patient's

medical history. The patient's history can give most of the necessary information, including patient-reported or previously recorded blood pressure, but pandemics result in lock down and limit to access all services (Dragoman et al., 2016). During the pandemic young generations reaching services was interrupted and safe provision of contraception cannot be done. In addition to a rise in traumatic stress, depression, suicide, and intimate partner violence, a decline in access to contraception is associated with increased unsafe abortions, miscarriages, pregnancy complications, and the spread of HIV and other STDs (Aly et al., 2020).

Adolescent sexual experimentation is associated with poor sexual and reproductive health for many young people. However, adolescents rarely get the counseling they need to develop healthy sexual and reproductive behaviors. Thirty percent of 13- to 17-year-olds with four or more years of continuous enrollment in a Minnesota health plan had no preventive care visits, and forty percent had only one (Lindberg et al., 2020).

Based on these results, it's clear that it's crucial to treat any contact with adolescents as a potential time to offer preventive care. Many adolescents do not receive the preventative sexual and reproductive health counseling they need before their first sexual experience or first experience of sexual intercourse (referred to in the literature as "sexual debut"), which can have serious short- and long-term health consequences such as sexually transmitted infections and unintended pregnancies. To guarantee that all teenagers get necessary sexual and reproductive health services, such as education and treatment for sexually transmitted diseases (Santa et al., 2017).

There are high teen pregnancy rates in rural areas of West Virginia, so in 2016, researchers looked at the effectiveness of using telehealth to teach reproductive health to 55 female students at two high schools in the area. Over a month, eight 60-minute sessions were provided by a group of knowledgeable faculty, residents, and medical students based out of a "distant" (hub site where the provider is located) academic hospital three hours away using high-definition teleconferencing equipment. At the six-month evaluation, 91.8 percent of participants rated telehealth as "very effective" as a teaching tool in terms of their acceptance and understanding, and the reported rate of HPV (Human Papillomavirus) vaccination rose from 38. (Stingley & Schultz, 2016). Results show that telehealth can facilitate access to services for sexual and reproductive health. Convenience, accessibility, and patient comfort are its benefits, especially for younger individuals. Considerations for privacy would need to

be made when using visual technologies for telehealth sessions. Both professionals and patients approved of the integration of telemedicine into healthcare (Cheng et al., 2021).

Self-care interventions, which allow people, families, and communities to promote health and manage illness with or without the assistance of a health care provider, are necessary due to a lack of health workers, according to the World Health Organization. However, they should serve as an adjunct to, not a substitute for, direct interaction with the health system. Both current accompanying programs and this telemedicine strategy can offer advice and assistance to individuals who are self-managing their abortions. To administer the entire spectrum of contraceptive options, such as misoprostol, and frequently have misoprostol on hand for the prevention of post-partum hemorrhage, links to clinicians knowledgeable in abortion care are still crucial. (Shaikh et al., 2021).

Unwanted pregnancies and STIs (sexually transmitted infections) are serious problems among sexually active young people for various reasons, some related to the young people themselves and others to their lack of access to family planning and contraceptive services. Even if the pandemic may lead to fewer opportunities for intercourse for some young people, disruptions in access to contraception and abortion can be quite problematic for those adolescents and young adults who can still be physically near their relationships. Kirwan et al. (2020).

Due to constraints and the fear of getting the disease, the pandemic has undoubtedly affected sexual connections and changed societal dynamics worldwide (Van et al., 2020). They had little time to adjust to the rapid change brought on by the fear of spreading disease, which resulted in a dramatic era in which pictures of illness and death were posted on social media every day. The most often discussed subjects in the literature that has investigated the psychological reactions of the populace to the dire situation include fear, sadness, rage, guilt, grief, and loss, post-traumatic stress, and stigma. (Pan et al., 2020).

In order to elicit an orgasm, one must stimulate or manipulate his or her genitalia, including the penis, clitoris, vulva, and breast. Instead, it's known as sexual pleasure or sexual selfgratification. Despite initiatives to encourage relationship connection, recognize masturbation as a technique to enhance sexual health, and lower teen pregnancy, STIs, and HIV transmission. There has been quiet in the scientific and educational sectors on masturbation as a background for healthy sexual development. Masturbation is a technique that some sexual therapists employ to help their clients better understand their own sexual reaction (Kaestle and Allen, 2011). In order to properly treat common sexual health issues and offer medically accurate, nonjudgmental, and private sexual therapy, nurses must be proficient in handling sexual health issues. Nurses must educate patients on medically necessary information, clarify any misinformation, and encourage healthy sexual attitudes and practices (Mushy et al., 2021).

1.2 Background of the study

The global pandemic of COVID-19 has put an extreme strain on the world's healthcare systems, making it difficult for these systems to continue providing their usual services. Even in high-income nations, people are reporting that it will be difficult to have access to family planning services in the year 2020 (World Health Organization, 2020). Sexual behavior, interpersonal connections, availability of contraception, safety from HIV and other STDs, and overall physical, mental, and emotional health were all significantly impacted as a direct result (Banerjee & Rao, 2020). As a result of the imposed social distance, contact between individuals was limited, and this had knock-on effects on people's sexual activity, sexual partners, sexual desire, and satisfaction, as well as their intake of pornographic media (Fegert et al., 2020).

Production of crucial pharmaceutical components of contraceptive techniques or production of the methods themselves, as well as transportation of contraceptive commodities, were all negatively impacted by the COVID-19 epidemic. The epidemic devastated the distribution of contraceptive goods (Krubiner et al., 2021). In addition to people being hesitant to use healthcare facilities for sexual and reproductive health services, resources allocated to those treatments could be reallocated to fulfill other demands. There is also the possibility that clinics could shut down, and individuals would avoid seeking care at hospitals (Riley et al., 2020). As a result of widespread travel restrictions enacted by governments to stem the spread of the virus, many people are being denied access to a time-sensitive and potentially life-saving service. Also, because they are not necessities, several sexual and reproductive health services have been suspended by their providers. This resulted in limiting the sexual relationship because of the fear of being affected by the pandemic, one such service is abortion care (Gichuna et al., 2020). Individuals' reduced travel to crowded locations as a result of the fear of contracting the virus and the public health precautions has resulted in many people having difficulty maintaining personal relationships, particularly teenagers and young adults (Shadmi et al, 2020). Many parts of young people's lives were altered since they were unable to interact with their peers because of restrictions placed on their movement and the closing of schools (Stavridou et al, 2020).

This study contributes to the literature new information about students' sexual activity, sexual habits, contraceptive method needs and difficulties reach to the contraceptive methods during the pandemics. And this study also will be the first study was done on sexual activity and contraceptive needs of the students during the pandemics in North Cyprus Republic of Turkish.

1.3 The aim of study

The aim of this study is to assess the effect of COVID-19 pandemic on sexual life of the students' and their contraceptive use.

To try to reach the research goal, the following specific goals will be looked at:

- 1. How were the university students' sexual habits during COVID-19 pandemic?
- 2. How were the university student's sexual life during the COVID-19 pandemic?
- 3. How has the COVID-19 pandemic affected the use of contraceptive methods by the university students?
- 4. Does COVID -19 pandemic affect the sexual habits of university students?

1.4 Significance of the Study

In this thesis, the researcher will be able to indicate and explore the effect of COVID-19 pandemic on the university students' sexual lives, contraceptive usage, and their fear of being infected with COVID-19 during sexual intercourse. The results of this study will be used by the next generation. Since most studies have not concentrated on how the COVID-19 epidemic influenced university students' sexual lives and behaviors, the study will also be useful to future researchers who will be researching on the same topic.

Chapter II

Literature review

2.1 Effect of covid-19 pandemic on sexuality and reproductive health

During the COVID-19 epidemic, researchers looked at how sexual habits and functioning changed. Married women in Turkey report higher levels of sexual desire and more frequent sexual encounters but also report lower levels of sexual functioning and overall quality of life, as measured by the Female Sexual Function Index (Klç, 2019). As a result of depression, loneliness, and deteriorating relationships, people's sexual inclinations have waned. COVID-19 pandemic's quarantine restrictions and people's restricted access to support networks, violence against women and girls has intensified (Shojaaddini Ardakani et al, 2021). As a result of quarantine rules, spousal violence, drug misuse, anxiety, sadness, and suicide have all been linked to the policies (Mazza et al, 2020). There was a drop in hazardous sexual behavior along with a decrease in overall sexual activity levels (Li et al., 2020).

Adolescent and young adult sexually transmitted illnesses can be reduced, risk behavior is prevented, and healthy behaviors are promoted via psychological and educational programs and interventions (Mwale & Muula, 2017). According to a recent study, young people are more prone to engaging in risky activities than the elderly. Young adult males, in particular, are more likely to engage in risky activities than their female counterparts. Death rates are both increased as a result of this high prevalence (Flesia et al,2020). During the outbreak of COVID-19, the World Health Organization suggested that sexual and reproductive health services, including family planning, should be maintained (Vora, Saiyed & Natesan, 2020). The COVID-19 pandemic is already putting additional strain on healthcare systems throughout the world by increasing the number of patients who need to be cared for. Although family planning was still available, it was restricted or discontinued during the pandemic due to a shortage of doctors and nurses who had been trained to handle COVID-19 patients or as a result of lockdown measures to control the COVID-19 pandemic (Khan &

Naushad, 2020). A higher incidence of disease and mortality is projected if family planning and other reproductive health services are not improved (Foreman et al, 2018).

Li et al, (2020) investigated the impact that COVID-19-related policies had on sexual and reproductive health as well as the quality of relationships between partners in China. It was established that 967 individuals were evaluated for problems related to sexual health. Twenty-two percent of the people who answered the survey said they had less sexual desire; forty-one percent said they had fewer sexual encounters; thirty percent said they were masturbating more often; twenty percent said they were drinking less alcohol before or during sexual activities; and thirty-one percent said their relationship with their partners had gotten worse because of the pandemic. In the logistic regression model, it was discovered that parameters such as exclusivity, sexual desire, and sexual enjoyment, as well as accommodations during the pandemic, had an effect on partner relationships.

A self-validated survey questionnaire was used by Aolymat (2021) in her research with a sample size of 200 Jordanian women to investigate the impact that the COVID-19 pandemic had on domestic violence, the health of the genital tract, menstruation, and the use of contraceptives. According to the findings of the research, menstrual abnormalities and infections of the vaginal system dropped by a significant amount during the course of the whole period covered by the curfew as compared to the previous six months. In general, the number of menstrual or birth canal infections treated over the phone increased considerably, whereas the number of patients seen in clinics fell. The number of women using birth control dropped significantly when there was a complete curfew in place. In comparison to the time before the pandemic, the number of people using birth control methods for the purpose of family planning saw a significant drop during the epidemic. Prabowo et al, (2021). Examined the impact of working from home on the mental health and reproductive health of Indonesian women during the COVID-19 pandemic.

The effects of the COVID-19 epidemic on women's reproductive health were studied by Shojaaddini Ardakani et al. (2021). The spread of the COVID-19 pandemic led to a decrease in the quality of sexual encounters while increasing their number because partners were more likely to be at home. As a result, it became clear that sex had become less satisfying. Women's mental health has taken a hit in recent years due to increased reports of stress, anxiety, and depression.

Adolescent and young adult sexual and reproductive health has been and will continue to be negatively impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic via both proximal pathways (Wood et al., 2020). Despite the efforts that have been made to identify masturbation as a technique to enhance sexual health, boost relationship closeness, and minimize the risk of unintended pregnancy, STIs, and HIV transmission among adolescents, these initiatives have not been successful. Scientific and educational organizations have largely ignored masturbation as a potential environment for healthy sexual development. Because of the sensitive nature of sexual health concerns, nurses are expected to have the expertise to diagnose and treat sexual health problems, obtain an accurate sexual history, and provide sexual counseling grounded in evidence-based practice without passing judgment. Mushy et al., (2021). It is the job of nurses to give patients accurate medical information, correct any wrong information they may have been given, and encourage healthy sexual attitudes and behaviors among patients.

One important factor affected reproductive health is disruption of services. Mukherjee et al, (2021) found that COVID-19 caused disruptions in services that affected women's access to abortion, contraception, HIV/STI testing, and changes in their periods, plans to get pregnant, and sexual behaviors.

Stavridou et al, (2021) researched the potential for alterations in sexual activity and relationships among teenagers and young adults in the course of the COVID-19 outbreak. The researchers found that during the COVID-19 outbreak, both men and women reported having less of a desire to engage in sexual activity. It was shown that people who had fewer sexual experiences and less bonding behavior between partners had greater degrees of loneliness and sadness than those who had more of both. But some people said that their sexual desire had grown, and that masturbation was the way that they chose to satisfy that desire.

Hille et al, (2021) conducted research in Germany, Switzerland, and Austria during the COVID-19 outbreak to investigate the influence that physical separation strategies had on sexual behavior in single and coupled people. There were a total of 1017 single people and 1498 paired individuals who were analyzed. When compared to the previous period, people who were coupled masturbated much less when they were physically separated, but masturbation rates increased among men who were alone. Even though the difference was not statistically significant, the rate of masturbation was lower among single women. The only activity that did not show a substantial fall in frequency after the introduction of physical

separation measures for both groups was anal intercourse between paired people. Socio sexual factors and one's partner's physical sexual attractiveness were found to have a positive correlation with the number of new sexual practices added during physical distance measurements. On the other hand, there was no link between the number of new sexual practices and feelings of affection during sex with a partner or happiness in a relationship.

Fuchs et al, (2022) researched to investigate the impact that the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the sexual function of women. A rise in the Female Sexual Function Index score indicates that, on average, women's sexual function is much better in month five compared to month one. This can be observed by looking at the comparison between the two months. The evaluations for arousal, lubrication, orgasm, and pain were higher, but the scores for desire were lower. A nearly equivalent degree of enjoyment was reported by all involved.

Quantitative methods were employed by Rauchle et al, (2022). To investigate how people's sexual behaviors altered when the COVID-19 outbreak struck Germany. The results of the study demonstrated a decline in participants' levels of sexual enjoyment as well as an increase in the frequency of sexually-related problems and disagreements within committed relationships. The findings also indicated a rise in the watching of pornography and masturbation. As a result of the increased psychological stress brought on by the epidemic, individuals exhibited altered patterns of sexual behavior, which were associated with both an increase in time resources and a loss in social interactions.

2.2 How the COVID-19 pandemic affected the use of contraceptive methods

According to the World Health Organization, the United Nations Population Fund, and the National Centre for Women's Health in Society, safe, reliable, acceptable, and cost-effective contraceptive methods substantially impact women's health, particularly their mental health. Some modern, reversible contraception examples include male sterilization and intrauterine devices (IUDs). In addition to surgical methods like male and female sterilization, there are non-invasive methods, including depot medroxyprogesterone acetate (DMPA) injections and levonorgestrel implants (Norplant) as age-old methods like coitus interruption and abstention. Several methods are effective in treating mental illness and low mood. Much research has focused on hormonal contraceptives, sterilization, and psychological effects (Beksinska et al., 2021). Women between the ages of 15 and 49 in five European countries (France, Germany, Italy, Spain, and the United Kingdom) were polled, and the overwhelming majority (90+%) reported being very or extremely satisfied with oral contraceptives (Skouby, 2004). Women

who used contraceptive implants in Malaysia, Nigeria, and the West Indies reported high levels of satisfaction with their implants, indicating that there were no negative psychological consequences (Mwanangombe et al, 2020).

Lack of access to contraception is also associated with an increase in unsafe abortions, miscarriages, pregnancy problems, the spread of HIV and other STDs, and the occurrence of post-traumatic stress disorder, depression, suicide, and violence toward intimate partners (Aly et al., 2020). As a result, the supply of contraception is viewed as a non-essential activity by certain decision-makers and directors of medical institutions. As an outcome, numerous clinics have been compelled to cease operations as a result of this perception (to stop operations). Appointments for contraception advice and the administration of contraceptives may have been rescheduled or rescheduled altogether at clinics that have remained operational despite the hurricane. In addition to the actual closure of clinics, patients' concerns about becoming infected with COVID-19 and the restricted availability of transportation services in some nations both contribute to a decrease in patient turnout. There have been significant drops in the number of women going to reproductive health clinics, according to reports from reproductive health stakeholders in several different nations (Aly et al., 2020). The supply of safe contraception is mostly dependent on the patient's medical history, and it is only occasionally necessary to perform a physical exam, breast exam, pelvic exam, or screening for sexually transmitted infections or cervical cancer. A lot of the information needed to give contraceptives can be found in the patient's medical history, such as the patient's self-reported or previously recorded blood pressure. However, pandemics cause all services to close and limit who can use them (Dragoman, Jatlaoui, Nanda, Curtis, and Gaffield, 2016).

Women's reproductive rights, including the capacity to manage their fertility and make informed choices about when, how often, and if they want to have children, are protected by the use of contraceptives (Karp et al, 2020). Unfortunately, women's status and position in the family and community do not often allow them to fully exercise this freedom and protect themselves from STDs. The right to sexual and reproductive health care is inextricably linked to other basic human rights, including the freedom to work, a safe place to live, and an adequate education (Berro Pizzarossa, 2018). Without access to reproductive health care and the ability to make their own decisions, improving women's health on a global scale would not have been feasible. Reproductive health considers not only biological variables but also

social and cultural ones (Hoover, 2022). Access to healthcare, especially reproductive health care, is determined by government regulations. There is a possibility that social and religious attitudes against contraception and sex outside of marriage might affect government policy, resulting in tight eligibility requirements for publicly supported reproductive health care and limitations on the types of contraception that can be used (Spadt et al, 2014). Women have been the primary subjects of the majority of studies looking at factors that influence demand for contraceptives, as well as the scope and nature of the unmet contraceptive need. Women who are not pregnant but want to limit their family size are a good example of unmet demand, as are pregnant women who report that their pregnancy was either unplanned or early (Kebede et al., 2019). It is not enough to have them readily available to be able to use them. According to studies, women's reported intention to take contraceptives differs significantly from their actual use, and the researchers wanted to find out why this was the case (Bishwajit et al, 2017).

During the COVID-19 pandemic, Wood et al. (2021) analyzed the population-level changes in women's needs for contraception as well as their utilization of birth control methods. Due to the fact that they were questioned at both the baseline and the COVID-19 follow-ups, the study only included 7245 women who were married or lived together as if they were married. The number of women in Lagos who require any form of birth control increased by 5.81% points (from 74% to 80%). Contraceptive utilization among women in need increased by 17.37 % points in rural Burkina Faso, from 30% to 48%, while it increased by 7.35% points in rural Kenya, from 71.6 % to 78.9 %. Both of these countries are located in sub-Saharan Africa. A closer look at socio demographic subgroups reveals several patterns that were previously only visible on the surface of these overarching tendencies. In every single one of the places that were investigated, it was shown that nulliparous women have a greater need for birth control methods.

Marquez et al. (2020) state that the community quarantine resulting from the pandemic had numerous unfavorable effects on the sexual and reproductive health of Filipino women. Caruso, Rapisarda, and Minona (2020) conducted a study to examine the impact of social distance on hormonal contraception, the cessation of such contraception, and the risk of young women having an unexpected pregnancy during the COVID-19 pandemic. A total of 155 former users of short-acting reversible contraception (SARC) and 90 former users of long-acting reversible contraception (LARC) filled out the survey. However, during social

distancing, 51 non-cohabiting or single women stopped using their SARC method for reasons unrelated to SARC; 47 non-cohabiting or single women continued sexual activity, in violation of the rules of social distancing; and 14.9% of the women had an unplanned pregnancy for which they sought a termination.

Karp et al, (2021) investigated the dynamics of contraception as well as the COVID-19 experiences. They also investigated the COVID-19-related factors that contributed to women's refusal to take contraceptives. During COVID-19, the majority of women in Burkina Faso (68.6%) and Kenya (81.6%) did not make any changes to their current method of contraception, and of those who did, the majority were more likely to start using a method than to cease using one (25.4% and 13.1%, respectively) (6.0% and 5.3%, respectively). The majority of women who changed their methods of birth control used techniques that were either just as effective as or more successful than the methods they were using before the outbreak.

Coombe et al, (2021). Looked at the effects that something like this has on sexual and reproductive health. Participants' ages ranged from 18 to 24 years old, and the overwhelming majority of them said that they were aiming to delay or avoid becoming pregnant. The most common method of birth control was the oral contraceptive pill, while over 20% of women reported that they did not use any kind of birth control at all. During the government shutdown, it was easier for working women to access birth control and other contraceptives. Some of the participants in COVID-19 either put off having children or made the choice not to have children at all.

Emer and Koops (2022) conducted research on the fertility habits and goals of women in middle-income countries. The pandemic did not change how people used birth control. Instead, the number of women using intrauterine devices went down while the number of men using condoms went up. Charles et al, (2022) investigated how the COVID-19 epidemic in Brazil influenced sales of contemporary contraceptive techniques in Brazil. They discovered that there was not much of an increase in the sales of contraceptives in the year 2020 as compared to the previous year. The monthly unit sales averaged between 12.8 and 13.0 million products sold each and every month. Between June and July 2020, there was an increase in the number of sales of EC pills, but between March and June 2020, there was not a significant change in the number of sales of pills, patches, or rings. Both the levonorgestrel-

releasing intrauterine system (LNG-IUS) and the etonogestrel (ENG) implant had a decline in sales during the months of February and May of 2020. After May 2020, there was a noticeable increase in the number of implants sold. This was due to the fact that the first deaths associated with COVID-19 occurred in May of 2020 (This is in correlation with the growing incidence of fatalities caused by COVID-19).

Bailey, Bart, and Lang (2022) investigated the contraception methods used by low-income women without access to reproductive health care during the pandemic. According to their findings, the number of births to mothers with low incomes will decrease by 1.1 percent in 2021. This is due to the fact that in 2020, access to various methods of birth control will be restricted, and the economy will slow down. If more information was known about the limits placed on abortion, the birth rate for women with low incomes could potentially increase. These results also mean that the number of unplanned births would go up a lot in low-income households, which are more likely to be affected by the economy in COVID-19.

Wright et al, (2022) conducted research on 1,445 women of reproductive age in Lagos, Nigeria, during the COVID-19 epidemic. They discovered that a significant number of these women employed contemporary methods of contraception. They also investigated the elements that could have had a role in their decision to use contemporary contraception. A total of 30.8% of people were using some form of modern contraception. The following is how the events transpired: The percentage of women between the ages of 20 and 29 who used modern contraception during the pandemic was lower than the percentage of women between the ages of 30 and 39. Women who were married or had been divorced were more likely to use contemporary contraception than women who were not married or had never been married.

Chapter III

Methodology

3.1 Research Design

A descriptive research design method was used for this study.

Data collection was achieved from the students physically in the school premises during break time and few data was distributed to the students through mobile link due to the social

distance during the covid-19 pandemic. In this study 220 total number of questionnaires were distributed to the students physically while 147 total number of the questionnaire were shared online due to the effects of COVID-19 among students. The statistical analysis used in this study was chi-square test and krushkil Wallis H test.

3.2 Participants/Population and Sample

Population of this study comprised of all the students in three Faculties at Near East University: this includes; Law (Department of International Law), Faculty of Economics and Administrative Science (Department of Banking and finance), Faculty of Arts and Science (Department of English language and literature).

These three faculties were chosen because the aim of this research is to gather information of students who doesn't have basic knowledge about health science to be able to get a clear results on how pandemic has affected student's sexual life and contraceptive uses. The total number of registered students in fall semester 2021-2022 in these 3 faculties is 460 at Near East University North Cyprus. According to my study, it has been recruited those three hundred sixty-seven (367) registered students from the Law, Economics, and Administrative Science and Arts and Science faculty were included in the study.

3.3 Data collection tools/materials

The instrument for data collection in this study was a questionnaire containing 37 question developed by the researcher according to the literature. The questionnaire contained sociodemographic information of the students, effect of pandemics on the student's sexual life. Questionnaire also contained questions on contraceptive method usage, the fear and difficulties about contraceptive use during pandemics of contacting sexual transmitted disease and Covid-19, difficulties faced to reach the contraceptive methods and sexual needs of the students during the pandemic.

The questions numbered 1-5 and 11 are measuring socio-demographic characteristics of the students, 6-10 are measuring student's chronic disease and covid-19 experienced. 12-17 measuring student's sexual activity and how covid-19 affected students sexual life during pandemic and the fear students faced, 18-24 are measuring the students sexual desire changes

pre and during the pandemic. 25-35 are measuring the contraceptive methods use among students during the pandemic and the questions numbered 36-37 measuring the student's sexual life and sexual compatibility. These questions were scored between 0-10. For these questions, zero mean no change, 5 mean moderate change and, 10 mean complete change.

3.4 Data Analysis Plan

This study was planned descriptively and tools were applied to the students by researcher face to face and some copies were shared online among the students through WhatsApp link. In this study percentile and mean is used. And according to the Kolmogorov-Smirnov test results, non-parametric tests (Kruskal-Wallis H Test) and Chi square tests were used that showed normal distribution.

3.5 Sample size

To estimate the sample size, the formulae for probability population were used. The formulae are estimated as:

No= Z2 (p) (1-p) /E2

= 1.922 * 0.5 * 1 - 0.5 / 0.052

=3.6864*0.5*0.5/0.0025

=0.9216/0.0025

No=368

Where:

Z Scores =1.92,

P population proportion = 0.5,

Q=1-p

E margin of error = 0.05

No of sample size = 367

The 367 represent the total number of students that will be part of the research process. We use the probability for population formula to determine the sample size from the various departments, which is (Faculty of law- Department of International law, Faculty of Economics and Administrative Science- Department of Banking and Finance, Faculty of Arts and Science- Department of English Language and Literature) into the study.

According to the study it was recruits that 460 was the total number of registered students in the three faculties chosen outside the health faculties at Near East University 2021-2022 fall semester (Faculty of law- Department of International law, Faculty of Economics and Administrative Science- Department of Banking and Finance, Faculty of Arts and Science-Department of English Language and Literature) with the total number of students gotten from Departments of international law was 198 students, which is the total number of students the department, from Departments of Banking and finance was 160, Department of English language and literature was 102 students, using universal method to calculate the specific number of sample size, 80% out of 460 students was recruits to be the total number of 367 students in total to be used as the sample size in the study. With this result the number of the sample size to be use in this study will be 367 students from the three faculties. 158 students to be taken from Department of international law, 128 students to be taken from Department of Banking and finance, 81 students to be taken from Department of English Language and Literature (Total sample size from 3 faculties=367). In this study 220 total number of questionnaires were distributed to the students physically while 147 total number of the questionnaire were shared online due to the effects of COVID-19 among students. One hundred copies of questionnaires were distributed to the students in the Department of International Law through physically while 58 students were shared online among the students, seventy copies of questionnaire were shared among the students in Department Banking and Finance physically while 58 were shared online among the students. Fifty copies of questionnaire were shared physically among the students in the Department of English and Literature while 31 copies were shared online among the students.

3.6 Inclusion criteria

-Students over 18-year-old

-Students have no English communication problem.

- Students are sexually active.

3.7 Ethical considerations

This study was approved by the Ethics committee of Near East University on 28.04.2022 (IRB No. NEU/2022/102-1552). (*Appendix File B*) before the application of the study. Furthermore, Informed consent of all the students was taken prior to the application of questionnaire.

CHAPTER IV

Findings and Discussion

Data collection, analysis and discussion

Table 4.1: The Socio-demographic Characteristics of the Students (n=367)

Socio-demographic characteristics of students	F*	%
Age		
18-20 years	144	39.2
21-23 years	108	29.4
24- 26 years	65	17.7
27 year and above	50	13.6
Gender		
Male	300	81.7
Female	67	18.3
Academic year		
1 st	122	33.2
2 nd	127	34.6
3 rd	81	22.1
4 th	37	10.1
Person the students living with		
Alone	63	17.2
Friends	123	33.5
Family	163	44.4
Others**	18	4.9

Department

International law	158	43.1
Business administration	110	30.0
English language art	99	27.0
Students' marital status		
Single with regular partner	349	95.1
***Married	18	4.9
Total	367	100.0

*F frequency

**The others represent a student who had an accommodation issue with no stable place but currently staying with a course mate not a friend.

***Spouses, faineance and others were matched.

Table 4.1 shows that the age of the students, 39.2% of students were between the age groups of 18–20 years. In this study 81.7% of the students were male, and 34.6% of the respondents were second-year students.

The distribution of who are living with the students is shown in Table 4.1 living with. 44.4% of the students said they are staying with their family, 33.5% said they are staying with friends. As a result, 43.1% of students were students in international law, 30% were student in business administration department, and 27% of students were in English Language Art department. As seen in the table, 95.1% of the students are single with regular partner, while 5% of them are married.

	F	%
Having covid-19 vaccination		
Yes	241	65.7
No	126	34.3
Covid-19 Experience		
Yes	192	52.3
No	175	47.7
Total	367	100.0

Table 4.2: Students Having Covid-19 Vaccination and Disease Experience (n=367)

Table 4.2 shows the number of students that had Covid-19 vaccination, 65.7% of the students had Covid-19 vaccination. Of the total students, 52.3% of the students had COVID-19 experience. The results show that most of the students had COVID-19.

Table 4.3: Students' Sexual Relationship Experiences Before and during the Pandemic (n=367)

Students' sexual relationships experience	F	%
Before the pandemic		
Yes	264	71.9
No	103	28.1
During the pandemic		
Yes	266	72.5
No	101	27.5
Total	367	100.0

Table 4.3 shows the sexual relationships of the students before and during the pandemic. 71.9% of the students said yes, they had sexual relationships before the COVID-19 pandemic. In our study, 72.5% of the students said they had a sexual relationship during the pandemic.

Students' sexual activity frequency	Before the pandemic		During the pandemic	
	F	%	F	%
Every day	206	56.1	211	57.5
Ones in two days	75	20.4	77	21.0
Ones in three days	22	6.0	24	6.5

Table 4.4: Students' Sexual Activity Frequency Before and during Pandemic (n=367)

Ones in four days	12	3.3	6	1.6
Ones in five days	14	3.8	1	0.3
More than ones in six days	7	1.9	4	1.1
Ones in seven days	9	2.5	14	3.8
Ones in fifteen days	6	1.6	5	1.4
Monthly	16	4.4	25	6.8
Total	367	100.0	367	100.0

Table 4.4 depicts the sexual activity frequency of the students before the pandemic. 56.1% of the students said that they have sex every day, 20.4% of the students said that they have sex every two days. In our study 6.0% of the students said they have sex every three days, while 57.5% of the students said that they have sex every day during the pandemic, 21.0% of the students said that they have sex every two days, 6.5% of the students said they have sex every three days during the pandemic.

Table 4.5: The Effect of Covid-19 Pandemic on the Student's Sexual Desire and Habits (n=367)

	F	%
Student's Sexual Desire		
Decreased sexual desire	221	60.2
Increased sexual desire	117	31.9
Desire is not affected	29	7.9
Students' habits during the pandemics		
Used sex toys instead of having sex with partner	245	66.8
Used masturbation for sexual pleasure	122	33.2
Total	367	100.0

Table 4.5 shows the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on student's sexual desire and habits. As a result, 60.2% of the students said their sexual desire decreased during the pandemic, 31.9% of the students said that their sexual desire increased, 7.9% of the students said that the pandemic did not affect their sexual habits. In this study, 66.8% of the students said they used toys instead of having sex with other genders, 33.2% of the students said that they masturbated during the pandemic.
Effect of covid-19 pandemic on sexual behavior	F	%
Changing sexual position	250	68.1
Avoiding kissing	66	18.0
Wearing face masks during the sex	20	5.4
Watching sex videos instead of having sex	15	4.1
Preferring mobile or video sex instead of sexual intercourse	16	4.4
Total	367	100.0

Table 4.6: The Effect of Covid-19 Pandemic on the Student's Sexual Behaviors (n=367)

Table 4.6 shows the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on the students' sexual behavior. 68.1% of the students said that the pandemic changed their sexual position, 18.0% of the students avoided kissing and, 5.4% of the students said they wore face masks during the sex and 4.4% of the students said they preferred mobile or to watch video sex instead of sexual intercourse.

	e	
	F	%
Having fear		
Yes	245	66.8
No	122	33.2
Reasons of fear for sexual intercourse (n=245)		
Being infected with STD's	50	20.4
Unwanted pregnancy	40	16.3
Being infected with Covid-19	110	44.9
Can't attend university education	39	15.9
Other*	6	2.4

Table 4.7: The Fear of Students of Having Sexual Relationship during the Pandemics (n=367)

*The answers were given by the students in the form as other "being scared of contacting tuberculosis, diseases from partner sputum, community discrimination and economic factors".

Table 4.7 shows how the pandemic instill fear in the students. In this study 66.8% of the students were afraid to have a sexual relationship, 20.4% of the students said they were afraid to be infected with STDs, 16.3% of the students said they did not want any unwanted

pregnancies, 44.9% of the students said they were afraid to be infected with the COVID-19 pandemic and 15.9% of the students said that they fear about could not attending to the university.

Table 4.8: Changes Seen in Sexuality of the Students before and during the Pandemics (n=367)

Changes seen in sexuality	F	%
Moderate change	307	83.7
Completely change	60	16.3
Total	367	100.0

Table 4.8 shows the students' changes seen in sexuality of the students before and during the pandemic. As a result, 83% of the students said that they had moderate change in their sexuality, 17% of the students had completely changed.

	Effect of covid-19 on sexual desire			
	No	Moderate	Complete	
	Change	Change	Change	
	$(ar{x}\pm \mathrm{s})$	$(\overline{x}\pm s)$	$(ar{x}\pm \mathrm{s})$	Р
Sexual desire	1.10±0.384	1.95 ± 0.251	2.32 ± 0.74	0.000*
Orgasm	1.56±0.234	1.61±0.613	2.23±0.606	0.000*
Lubrication level	2.15±0.324	2.11±0.309	2.65 ± 0.48	0.000*
Arousal	1.9±0.432	2.09±0.29	2.53±0.503	0.000*
Satisfaction	2.85±0.389	2.12±0.321	2.59±0.495	0.000*
Pain	2.15±0.367	2.11±0.317	2.39±0.492	0.000*
Erection	1.59±0.29	2.09±0.286	$2.58 \pm \! 0.498$	0.000*

Table 4.9: Effect of Covid-19 on the Student's Sexuality (n=367)

*p<0,05 (Kruskal-Wallis H Test)

Table 4.9 shows the descriptive explore analysis the effect of covid-19 on student's sexual life during the pandemic of the 367 participants, sexual desire of students said no change during the pandemic has an average mean of 1.10 ± 384 , Minimum of 1, Maximum of 3, Orgasm has an average mean of 1.56 ± 234 , Minimum of 2, Maximum of 3, Lubrication have an average mean of 2.15 ± 324 , and a minimum of 1, and a maximum of 3 Arousal has an average mean of $1.90\pm.432$ and a minimum of 1 and, a maximum of 3 Satisfaction has an average mean of $2.85\pm.389$, minimum of 2, maximum 3, Pain has an average mean of

 $2.15\pm.367$, minimum 1, maximum is 3 While erection has an average mean of 1.59 ± 2.00 , a minimum 1 and, a maximum of 3.

The result for moderate change also shows that sexual desire has an average mean of $1.95\pm.251$ and a minimum of 1 and maximum of 3, for orgasm $1.61\pm.613$, a minimum 1 and, a maximum of 3. While lubrication has an average mean of 2.11 ± 309 and a minimum of 2 and maximum of 3, Arousal has an average mean of $2.09\pm.290$ and a minimum 2 and maximum 3, Student's satisfaction has an average mean of $2.12.\pm.321$ and a minimum 2 and maximum of 3, for pain $2.11\pm.317$ and a minimum 2, maximum 3. For erection students mean value was found $2.09\pm.286$ and minimum of 2 and, a maximum of 3.

The results for complete change shows that out of the 367 participants, sexual desire has an average mean of $2.32 \pm .740$ and a minimum of 1, and a maximum of 3, Orgasm has an average mean of $2.23\pm .606$ and, minimum of 1 and maximum of 3, Lubrication has an average mean of $2.65\pm .480$ and a minimum of 2 and a maximum of 3, Arousal has an average mean of $2.53\pm .503$ and a minimum of 2, and maximum of 3, Satisfaction has an average mean of $2.59\pm .495$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum 3, and Pain $2.39\pm .492$ with a minimum 2, maximum 3. While Erection has an average mean of $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum of $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2.58 $\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum of $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum of $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of $2.58\pm .498$ and a minimum of $2.58\pm .498$ minimum of $2.58\pm$

The above results show that there was a statistically significant change on the Sexual desire, Orgasm, Lubrication level, Arousal, Satisfaction, Pain and Erection scores by the effect of covid-19 on sexual desire (p<0.05). The students who have completely changed the impact of covid-19 on sexual desire scored higher.

	F	%
Contraceptive methods used		
Yes	238	64.9
No	129	35.1
Name of the methods used		
Condom	110	30.0
Oral contraceptives pills	40	10.9
Intrauterine Device	60	16.3
Injections	12	3.3

Table 4. 10: Contraceptive Methods Used by the Students during the Pandemics (n=367)

Implants	8	2.2
Diaphragm	5	1.4
Withdrawal method	3	0.8
Abstinence	129	35.1
Total	367	100.0

Table 4.10 shows the responses of the students to the contraceptive method they used during the pandemic. As a result, 64.9% of the students used contraceptive methods, 30.0% of the students' used condoms, and 10.9% of the students used oral contraceptive pills during the pandemic. In our study, 16.3% of the students used intrauterine devices during the pandemic.

	f	%
Problems Faced		
Yes	224	61,0
No	143	39,0
Kind of problems (n=224)		
Closures and cuts to sexual and reproductive health service	135	60,3
Economic difficulties	44	19,6
Lack of having information and guidance	15	6,7
Others*	30	13,4

Table 4.11: Problems with the use of the Contraceptive Methods (n=367)

*Answers were given as other were such as the use of counterfeit medicine product (A medicine made by someone other than the genuine manufacturer, by imitating an original product without authority).

Table 4.11 shows the problem students encountered with the use of the contraceptive method. 61% of the student's encountered problems with the usage, 60.3% of the students had closures and cuts to their sexual and reproductive health services problem, 19.6% of the students had economic difficulties and, 6.7% of the student's lacked information and guidance on the use of contraceptives.

Table 4.12: Student's having Sexual Intercourse without the use of Contraceptive Methods (n=367)

Student's Having Sexual Intercourse without the use of Contraceptive Method	F	%
Yes	231	62
No	136	38
Total	367	100

Table 4.12 shows the responses of the students to have sexual intercourse without the use of a contraceptive method. As a result, 62% of the students had sex without any contraceptives method during the pandemic.

Table 4:13: Methods used in the absence of contraceptives (n=367)

Methods used	F	%
Abstinence from sex	202	55.0
Masturbation	69	18.8
I/my partner used withdrawal method	63	17.2

Sex toys	2	0.5
Unprotected intercourse	26	7.1
Others*	5	1.4
Total	367	100.0

*Answers was given as other was oral sex.

Table 4.13 shows the responses of the methods students used in the absence of contraceptives methods. As a result, 55% of the students were abstinent from sex, 19% of the students masturbated. 17% of the students used the withdrawal method.

Table 4.14: The Types of Contraceptive Methods Students Easily got accessed during the Pandemics (n=367)

Contraceptive method	f	%
Abstinence	133	36,2
Withdrawal	103	28,1
Condoms	107	29,2
Pills	16	4,4
Implant	6	1,6
Other*	2	0,5
Total	367	100,0

* The others represent injection, patch and traditional methods.

Table 4.14 shows the types of contraceptive methods they easily got access to during the COVID-19 pandemic. 36.2% of the students were abstinent from sex, 28.1% of the students used withdrawal methods, 29% of the students' used condoms. As a result, 4.4% of the students used pills.

Table 4.15: The Experience of Unwanted Pregnancy during the Pandemics (n=367)

Experience of unwanted pregnancy	F	%
Yes	225	61.3
No	142	38.7
Total	367	100

Table 4.15 shows the experience of unwanted pregnancy during the pandemic among university students. Out of the 367 participants, %61.30f the student's indicated that yes, they have experience of unwanted pregnancy during the pandemic.

Table 4.16: The Method used for Ending the Unwanted Pregnancy (n=367)

The method ending unwanted pregnancy	F	%
Giving birth	256	69.8
Abortion	111	30.2
Total	367	100

Table 4.16 shows how the students' end unwanted pregnancy during the pandemic. 69.8% of the students said that they give birth to babies. While the other 30.2% of the students said they did abortion.

Table 4.17: The Problem Faced with the Termination of Pregnancy (n=367)

The problem with the termination of pregnancy	f	%
Economic factors	224	61.0
Social condemnation	81	22.0
Interrupting education	55	15.0
Other*	7	2.0
Total	367	100.0

*The others represent the number of students that encounter problems of pregnancy termination from family culture circumstances between the ages of 18-20.

Table 4.17 shows the problem students encountered during the pregnancy termination. 61% of the students had economic problem, 22% social condemnation and, 15% education was interrupted.

Table 4.18: The effects of pandemics on the student's sexual life and sexual compatibility (n=367)

	Effects of covid-19 on student's sexual life.						
	No Change	Moderate Change	Complete Change				
	$(\bar{x}\pm s)$	$(\overline{x}\pm s)$	$(\bar{x}\pm s)$	Р			
Sexual life	1.04 ± 0.205	1.94±0.582	2.26±0.642	0,000*			
Sexual compatibility	1.27±0.520	2.16±0.465	2.47±0.505	0,000*			

*p<0,05 (Kruskal-Wallis H Test)

The above table 4.18 results shows' affection of covid-19 on sexual life of the students. The students have no change an average mean of 1.04 ± 0.205 and results show for sexual compatibility with an average mean of 1.27 ± 0.520 .

The above results show for affection of covid-19 on sexual life for moderate change, with and average mean of 1.94 ± 0.582 and the results show for sexual compatibility with an average mean of 2.16 ± 0.465 .

The above results shows' affection of sexual life for completely change with an average mean of 2.26 ± 0.642 and the results shows for sexual compatibility, with average mean of 2.47 ± 0.505 .

The above results show that there was a statistically significant change on the sexual life and sexual compatibility scores by the effect of covid-19 on sexual desire (p<0.05). The students who have completely changed the impact of covid-19 on sexual desire scored higher.

Table 4.19: Comparison of	Covia-19 experience on t	<i>ne student s sexual habits ($n=30$/)</i>

(1, 1)

	Co				
Sexual habits of the Student's	Yes		No		
	n	%	n	%	Р
Decreased sexual desire	153	79.7	68	38.9	

Increased sexual desire	33	17.2	61	34.9	0.000*
Not effected	6	3.1	46	26.3	
Total	192	100	175	100	

In Table 4.19, it was determined that 79.7% of the students who had coronavirus had decreased sexual desire, 17.2% had increased, and 38.9% of the students who did not have coronavirus had a decreased sexual desire and 34.9% had increased. The sexual desire of students who had coronavirus decreased significantly more than students who did not have coronavirus (p<0.05).

Change in orgasm	Y	es	No		
	Ν	%	Ν	%	Р
No change	114	59.4	27	15.4	
Moderate change	70	36.5	112	64.0	0.000*
Complete change	8	4.2	36	20.6	
Total	192	100	175	100	

Table 4.20: The effect of student's covid-19 experiences on the orgasm (n=367)

**p*<0,05 (*Chi square test*)

In Table 4.20, it was determined that 54.4% of the students who had coronavirus had no change orgasm, 36,5% had moderate change, and 38.9% of the students who did not have coronavirus had no change orgasm and 64.0% had complete change. The rate of no change in orgasm in students who had coronavirus was statistically significantly higher than those who did not have coronavirus (p<0.05).

Table 4.21: The effect of Covid-19 on the student's lubrication (n=367)

Lubrication level of students	Yes			No	
	n	%	n	%	Р
Moderate change	179	93.2	113	64.6	0.000*
Complete change	13	6.8	62	35.4	0.000*
Total	192	100	175	100	

In Table 4.21, it was determined that 93.2% of the students who had coronavirus had moderate change lubrication, and 64.6% of the students who did not have coronavirus had moderate change lubrication and 35.4% had complete change. The rate of moderate change in lubrication in students with coronavirus was statistically significantly higher than those without coronavirus (p<0.05).

		Covid-19 Experience					
Erection	Yes			No			
	n	%	n	%	Р		
Moderate change	176	91.7	126	72.0	0.000*		
Complete change	16	8.3	49	28.0	0.000		
Total	192	100	175	100			

Table 4.22: The effect of covid-19 on the student's Erection (n=367)

*p<0,05 (Chi square test)

In Table 4.22, it was determined that 91.7% of the students who had coronavirus had moderate change erection, and 72.0% of the students who did not have coronavirus had moderate change erection and 28.0% had complete change. The rate of moderate change in lubrication in students with coronavirus was statistically significantly higher than those without coronavirus (p<0.05).

Table 4.23: Comparison of the student's Contraceptive Methods use during the Pandemic by the Covid-19 experience (n=367)

		C				
	Using Contraceptive Methods		'es	Ν		
		n	%	n	%	Р
Yes		170	88.5	68	38,9	0.000*
No		22	11,5	107	61,1	0,000*
Total		192	100	175	100	

In Table 4.23, it was determined that 88.5% of the students who participated in the study who had coronavirus, used contraceptive methods during the pandemic, and 11.5% did not. It was determined that 38.9% of the students who did not have coronavirus used contraceptive methods during the pandemic, and 61.1% did not. The rate of using contraceptive methods during the pandemic by students with coronavirus is statistically significantly higher.

Contraceptive methods used		Covid-19			
		Yes		No	
during pandemics	n	%	n	%	Р
Condoms	95	48,0	82	46,9	
Oral contraceptives pills	23	12,0	30	17,1	0.000*
Intrauterine Device	59	30,7	11	6,3	0,000*
Others (Injection, Implants, Diaphram., Withdrawal)	15	7,8	52	29,7	
Total	192	100	175	100	

Table 4.24: Comparison of the student's Contraceptive Methods used by the Students had Covid-19 experience (n=367)

*p<0,05 (Chi square test)

When Table 4.24. is examined, 49.5% of the students who had coronavirus used Condoms, 12.0% Oral contraceptives pills, 30.7% Intrauterine Device as a contraceptive method during the pandemic. It was determined that 46.9% of the students who did not have coronavirus used Condoms, 17.1% Oral contraceptives pills, 6.3% Intrauterine Device. The rate of using

Intrauterine Device during the pandemic of the students who had coronavirus was statistically significantly higher than those who did not have the coronavirus (p<0.05).

Problem students faced		Yes		No	
contraceptive used during Covid-19	n	%	n	%	Р
Closures and cuts to sexual and	171	89.1	62	35.4	
reproductive health service	1/1	09.1	02	55.4	0.000*
Economic difficulties	14	7.3	46	26.3	
Others	7	3.6	66	37.7	
Total	195	100	174	100	

Table 4.25: Comparison of problems students faced with the contraceptive methods used during Covid-19

*p<0,05 (Chi square test)

In table 4.25. It was determined that 89.1% of the students who had coronavirus had closures and cuts to sexual and reproductive health service problems, 35.4% of the students who did not have coronavirus had closures and cuts to sexual and reproductive health service, and 26.3% had economic difficulties. The rate of experiencing closures and cuts to sexual and reproductive health service problems of students who had coronavirus was found to be statistically significantly higher than students who did not have coronavirus (p<0.05).

Table 4.26: Comparison of the methods students used in the Absence of Contraceptive Methods during Covid-19 by the Covid-19 experience (n=367)

¥	Covid-19 Experience					
The method used	Yes		No			
	n	%	n	%	Р	
Abstinence from sex	139	72.4	63	36.0		
Masturbation	41	21.4	28	16.0		
Withdrawal method	6	3.1	57	32.6	0.000*	
Others	1	0.5	6	3.4		
Unprotected intercourse	5	2.6	21	12.0		
	192	100	175	100		

*p<0,05 (Chi square test)

* The others represent injection, patch and traditional methods.

In table 4.26. It was determined that 72.4% of the students who had coronavirus Abstinence from sex, 36.0% of the students who did not have coronavirus Abstinence from sex. The rate of experiencing Abstinence from sex of students who had coronavirus was found to be statistically significantly higher than students who did not have coronavirus (p<0.05).

Table 4.27: Comparison of the students having Covid-19 Vaccination by Method used in Abscess to Contraceptive Method (n=367)

Methods used	Having Covid-19 vaccination					
wietnous used	Yes			No		
	n	%	n	%	Р	
Abstinence from sex	165	68,5	37	29,4		
Masturbation	46	19,1	23	18,3		
Withdrawal method	17	7,1	46	36,5	0,000*	
Others	4	1,7	3	2,4	0,000	
Unprotected intercourse Other	9	3,7	17	13,5		
Total	241	100	126	100		

**p*<0,05 (*Chi square test*)

*Answers was given as other was oral sex.

Table 4.27 shows that, out of the 367 participants, 68,5% of the students who were vaccinated used abstinence from sex, 19.1% used masturbation, 7.1% used withdrawal method, and 3.7% continued with unprotected intercourse. 29.4% who were not vaccinated use abstinence from sex, 18.3% use masturbation, 36.5% use withdrawal method, 13.5% continued unprotected intercourse. Therefore, we concluded that students who were vaccinated use more other methods in the absence of contraceptives than others.

The above results show that, there is a statistically significant difference in students who were vaccinated and, the other methods used in the absence of contraceptives methods. The rate of sexual avoidance of vaccinated students was statistically significantly higher than non-vaccinated students (p<0.05).

Table 4.28: Comparison of Students Fear of Having Sexual Relationship and Contraceptive Method Use (n=367)

Contraceptive methods	Fear of having sexual
used	relationship

	Yes		No			
	n	%	n	%	Р	
Condoms	129	52,7	48	39,3		
Oral contraceptives pills	36	14,7	17	13,9	0,000	
Intrauterine Device	63	25,7	7	5,7	0,000 *	
Others (Injection, Implants, Diaphragm.,						
Withdrawal)	17	6,9	50	41,0		
Total	245	100	122	100		

Table 4.28 shows that out of 367 participants, 52.7% of the students who had a fear of having a sexual relationship used condoms, 14.7% used oral contraceptive pills, 25.7% used an intrauterine device. During the pandemic, 39.3% of students who did not fear having a sexual relationship used condoms, 13.9% used oral contraceptives pills, 5.7% used an intrauterine device.

The rate of using Other (Injection, Implants, Diaphragm, Withdrawal) methods of students who are afraid of sexual intercourse was found to be statistically significantly higher than students who are not afraid of sexual intercourse (p<0,05).

Table 4.29: Comparison of the students having Covid-19 Vaccination by the Fear of having Relationship

	Havi	Having Covid-19 vaccination			
Fear of having sexual relationship		Yes		No	
	n	%	n	%	Р
Yes	207	85,9	38	30,2	0,000*
No	34	14,1	88	69,8	0,000*
Total	241	100	126	100	

*p<0,05 (Chi square test)

In Table 4.29., it was determined that 85.9% of the vaccinated students were afraid of having sexual intercourse during the pandemic, and 69.8% of the unvaccinated students were not afraid of having sexual intercourse during the pandemic.

It was determined that there was a statistically significant difference between the fear of having sexual intercourse during the pandemic according to the vaccination status of the students (p<0.05). The rate of fear of having sexual intercourse during the pandemic of vaccinated students is higher than non-vaccinated students.

Table 4.30: Comparison of students having Covid-19 Vaccination by Departments or Faculties (n=367)

	Hay				
Department and	Yes		No		
faculty name	Ν	%	Ν	%	Р
Law	103	42.7	55	43.7	
Business Administration	73	30.3	37	29.7	0,980
English Language Art	65	27.0	34	27.0	
Total	241	100	126	100	

(Chi square test)

Table 4.30 shows that, 42.7% of the students who have been vaccinated were in law, 30.3% were in business administration, and 27% were in English language arts department's students. In the study, 43.7% of the students who did not have COVID-19 were from the international law department, 29.4% were from the business administration department, and 27.0% were from the English language arts department. There is no statistically significant difference between the student's departments or faculty and having covid-19 vaccination (p>0,05).

Students having chronic disease	Hay				
	Y	Yes		No	
	Ν	%	Ν	%	Р
Yes	111	46.1	3	2.4	0,000*
No	130	53.9	123	97.6	0,000

Table 4.31: Comparison of students having Covid-19 Vaccination by Chronic Disease (n=367)

*p < 0.05 (chi-square test)

Chi square test)

Table 4.31 shows that, 46.1% of the students who have covid-19 vaccination indicated that they have chronic disease, and while 53.9% of them said no. 3 of the students who did not have vaccine indicated that, they have chronic disease and, 97.6% of them did not. Vaccination rate of patients with chronic disease was found to be statistically significantly higher than those without chronic disease (p<0.05).

CHAPTER V

Discussion

Our studies result shows that majority of the students had Covid -19 vaccination (Table 4.2). Prior to the national vaccination campaign, Barello et al (2020)'s survey on young adults in Italy found that; 86.1% of the sample had a tentative intention to receive the COVID-19 vaccine. When we compare the result of the students of our study with the Barello et al (2020)'s survey, we can say that one in third were not vaccinated and it is an important result for young generation. Several studies conducted in the United States looked at the intents and reluctance of students studying for health professions. According to the survey, only 45% of nursing students and faculty members planned to be vaccinated, Copeland et al. (2020). Another research of medical students discovered that 23% were reluctant to get the COVID-

19 vaccination right away after the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved, because many students are afraid of taking the vaccine, Lucia et al, (2020).

In this findings majority of the students said they had a sexual relationship during the pandemic. The rate of students having sexual relationship during and before the pandemic was found more in this study. Moreover, half of the participants in the study (53.8%) reported engaging in sexual activity when the school was under lockdown, compared to 41% of the men. The majority of women (57.7%) who reported being sexually active with their partners said they felt a strong emotional connection with them. (Roy et al., 2021).

In these findings, before the pandemic majority of the students said that they had sex every day (Table 4.4). This study shows that majority of the students who have sex every day using different methods during pandemic and, one-fifth of those who have sex every two days (Table 4.4.). According to the referenced literature, COVID-19 and social distancing recommendations can lead to more teens engaging in romantic or sexual activities online. Sexting is said to be the safest means of sexual intercourse during the pandemic, and previous research has shown that adolescents establish new connections online, and young people often contact their partners by smartphone or text. Online dating, sexting, digital sex, and other forms of virtual contact for romantic or sexual encounters have become increasingly popular among young people throughout the planet. Porn use among adolescents of sexual minority status has also been reported to increase throughout the pandemic, according to available research. Although many young people reported physically withdrawing from their partners during the COVID-19 pandemic, many maintained sexual and romantic connections. The findings imply that emergencies like the current COVID-19 pandemic extend the time young people need access to sexual health education and services (Haddad et al., 2022).

The results of Table 4.5 demonstrated that during the pandemic, majority of the students' sexual desire reduced, minority of the student's sexual desire increased during the pandemic, majority of the students used toys instead of having sex with other genders, and one-third of the students masturbated during the pandemic. According to these findings, Stavridou et al. (2021) discovered that sexual desire spiked throughout the pandemic, with masturbation being the most popular means of satisfying it. In addition, Hille et al. (2021) discovered that during the epidemic, 46% of unmarried women masturbated. According to Räuchle et al. (2022), a decline in sexual satisfaction was accompanied by increased sexual problems and marital strife. Masturbation and the viewing of pornographic media also rose. It is safe to

engage in masturbation and see pornographic media throughout the epidemic. İbrahim, 45% of individuals reported a decline in the quality of their sexual life, while 42% and 13%, respectively, indicated no change or improvement (as corroborated by zlü et al., 2022). The average number of times people engaged in sexual activity, whether alone or with a partner, fell significantly from the previous year. As a result, common forms of sexual conduct practiced for pleasure and recreation declined on average during this period of widespread restrictions on movement and interaction.

Table 4.6 shows the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on the students' sexual behavior majority of the students said that the pandemic changed their sexual position, one-fifth of the students avoided kissing and, 5% of the students said they wore face masks during the sex and 4% of the students said they preferred mobile or to watch video sex instead of sexual intercourse. A study shows that, during the first 12 weeks of lockdown over 80% of teens reported to have a new sexual partners each week, in order to deal with the isolation and loneliness they had been feeling since the epidemic started, individuals who admitted to violating societal taboos to engage in sex claimed that at the moment it was something they needed. Many people, nevertheless, also felt guilty of their actions and had to strike a balance between their personal wants and what was best for the group or society. (Williams et al., 2022).

According to Table 4.7, most students in this research are worried about having sexual encounters when the COVID-19 virus is circulating. While a sizable minority of students worry about contracting COVID-19 from having sexual encounters during the pandemic, about a third of students are concerned about contracting an STD from having sexual encounters during the pandemic. Broche-Pérez et al. (2022) agreed with these results and said that fearing COVID-19 could have good and bad effects. Fear of COVID-19 may cause people to be more aware of potential dangers, increase handwashing, and increase social isolation. Concern about contracting COVID-19 has been linked to sexual restraint or abstinence, as Baran & Aykac (2021) noted. When partners forgo sexual activity for fear of spreading disease, it can harm their relationships and lead to sexual dissatisfaction. According to Fuchs et al. (2020), a major increase in stress and anxiety levels and a big drop-in sexual activity were induced by the COVID-19 pandemic, primarily as a result of isolation and poor sexual desire brought on by stress. The epidemic has been related to a decline in both sexes' sexual enjoyment.

Table 4.8 shows changes seen in sexuality of the students before and during the pandemic. As a result, majority of the students said that they had moderate change in their sexuality, one-fifth of the students had completely changed. Although Hensel et al. (2020) found a decrease in vaginal intercourse among American couples, among British participants, 60.1% did not engage in sexual activity, while the remaining 39.9% had sex at least once a week throughout the self-isolation period. Another study by Lehmiller 2020 indicated that during the lockdown, the quality of sexual encounters dropped for 43.5% of individuals from various countries, and the frequency of sexual activity dropped significantly.

Table 4.9 shows the descriptive explore analysis the effect of covid-19 on student's who had no change sexual life during the pandemic of the 367 participants, sexual desire of students during the pandemic has an average mean for the students had no change $1.10\pm.384$, and with a minimum of 1 and a maximum of 3. Orgasm has an average mean for the students had no change $1.56\pm.234$, and minimum of 2, and a maximum of 3. Lubrication has an average mean for the students had no change $2.15\pm.367$, and a minimum of 1, and a maximum of 3. Arousal has an average mean for the students had no change $2.15\pm.367$, and a minimum of $1.9\pm.432$, and a minimum of 1 and a maximum of 3. Arousal has an average mean for the students had no change $2.15\pm.367$, minimum 1, maximum is 3, while Erection has an average mean for the students had no change $1.59\pm.290$ and a minimum of 2 and a maximum of 3 (Table 4.9).

The result for moderate change also shows that sexual desire has an average mean of $1.95\pm.251$ and a minimum of 1 and maximum of 3, for orgasm $1.61\pm.613$, a minimum 1 and, a maximum of 3. While lubrication has an average mean of 2.11 ± 309 and a minimum 2 and maximum of 3, Arousal has an average mean of $2.09\pm.290$ and a minimum 2 and maximum of 3, for pain $2.11\pm.317$ and a minimum 2, maximum 3. For erection students mean value was found $2.09\pm.286$ and minimum of 2 and, a maximum of 3. Lastly, The results for complete change also shows that out of the 367 participants, sexual desire has an average mean of $2.23\pm.740$ and a minimum of 1, and a maximum of 3, Orgasm has an average mean of $2.53\pm.606$ and, minimum of 2 and a maximum of 3, Lubrication has an average mean of $2.53\pm.503$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum of 3, Satisfaction has an average mean of $2.59\pm.495$ and a minimum of 2, and a maximum 3, and Pain $2.39\pm.492$ with a minimum 2, maximum 3. While Erection has an average mean of $2.58\pm.498$ and a minimum of 2, maximum 3, and pain $2.39\pm.492$ with a minimum 2, maximum 3. While Erection has an average mean of $2.58\pm.498$ and a minimum of 2, maximum 3, and pain $2.39\pm.492$ with a minimum 2, maximum 3.

of 2, and a maximum of 3 (Table 4.9). The above results show that, there were statistically significant difference on the student's sexual desire during the pandemic (P < 0.0001). The results are highly disparate, according to the literature that is currently accessible on the three primary areas of inquiry (sexual desire, arousal, and orgasm). The majority of participants claimed that, in comparison to a pre-lockdown baseline, the students' sexual desire reduced during the lockdown. For instance, the research by Ballester-Arnal et al. (2020) in Spain found that, 35.9% of subjects claimed to have more sexual desire while confined, whereas 34.9% reported lower sexual desire., The students' Female Sexual Function Index revealed a deterioration. as did scores in the categories of sexual desire, arousal, lubrication, orgasm, and pleasure. Nonetheless, greater rates of sexual dysfunction and lower sexual activity were reported more commonly in women than in males. During the COVID-19 epidemic, several authors claimed that, being in a city was linked to a drop in both sexual desire and the number of sexual encounters. Yet, it was shown that, both males and females who had fulfilling sexual lives were protected from the deterioration of mental health and quality of life, which were the predicted results of the epidemic. According to research by Yüksel and Özgür, the COVID-19 pandemic greatly enhanced Turkish ladies' sexual desire and frequency of sex, which can be attributed to greater time spent at home with a spouse. The quality of sexual life, however, substantially declined. In addition, the pandemic was linked to higher menstruation problems, reduced female contraception, and decreased desire for pregnancy (Izdebski et al., 2022).

This study results show that, majority of the students had sexual intercourse with the use of a contraceptive method (Table 4.10). During the pandemic, the contraceptive method mostly used by the students was condoms with 30%, intrauterine devices with 16%, and oral contraceptive pills with 11%. The results of this study were confirmed by Emer & Koops (2022) who found out that, during the pandemic condoms were the most commonly used contraceptive method, and the findings greatly support the results of our study. Skouby's (2004) study showed that oral contraceptives were the most frequently used type of contraception. Marquez et al. (2020) found that during the pandemics decreased use of modern contraceptive methods and increased unmet need for family planning. Coombe et al. (2021) found that during the pandemic, women did not have access to contraceptives that reduced their use of contraceptives. As a result, using condom is a positive behavior for the student's protection of STD and pregnancy.

Table 4.11. Shows that majority of the student's encountered problems with the use of the contraceptive method. Majority of the students had closures and cuts to their sexual and reproductive health services. As a result, one-fifth of the students had economic difficulties, few of the students had lack of having information and guidance on contraception. Bailey, Bart, and Lang (2022) found out that, during the pandemic people did not have access to contraceptives, so they had unprotected sex, and the findings are consistent with the results of the study. While Purdy, (2020) also indicated that, another serious problem is the lack of and restricted access to contraception services caused by the lockdown. Modern contraceptive supply has been significantly impacted by lockdowns in several low- and middle-income nations, the closure of several pharmaceutical enterprises, a backlog in the transit of contraceptives to other countries, and their manufacturing coming to a half, this study also in line with our study.

Table 4.12 shows the responses of the students to having sexual intercourse without the use of a contraceptive method. As a result, majority of the students had sex without any contraceptive method. Minority of the students had sexual intercourse with the use of contraceptives methods during the pandemic. According to studies, many students are unable to access contraceptives use in public health sectors during pandemic, making it difficult to prevent unintended pregnancies. In the meantime, Adolescents sexual behavior and use of contraceptives must adjust to these novel circumstances. Due of their social exclusion from friends and family throughout the pandemic, they lose support and solace. We are aware of very little data on COVID-19's effects on students seeking reproductive health services, including abortion during pandemic (Tu et al., 2021).

During pandemics, fewer people use modern means of contraception, leading to a greater unmet demand. If short- and long-acting reversible contraceptive strategies were used 10% less frequently due to lack of access, an estimated 59 million more adolescent women would have an unmet need for contraception, and 15 million more women would have an unwanted pregnancy in developing nations that year (Aly et al., 2020).

Table 4.13 shows the responses of the methods students used in the absence of contraceptives methods. As a result, majority of the students were abstinent from sex, one in fifth of the students masturbated, approximately two in ten of the students used the withdrawal method. This study was confirmed by contraception although the rate of unprotected intercourse was found low in our study, Skouby, S. O. (2004) indicated that, 23% of the participants in the European research were not using any kind of contraceptive methods, while 6% of the

participants were using unreliable techniques (such as cap/diaphragm, chemical, natural, and withdrawal methods). Byers, et al,.(2009) also show that, the majority of students said having oral, anal, and vaginal sex was not abstinent, just 1% of student's classified vaginal sex as abstinent, 24% reported having anal sex as abstinent, and 37% reported having oral sex as abstinent. On the other hand, despite the fact that the majority of students identified masturbation, sexual ideas, kissing, swimming together, physical stimulation of another person to orgasm, and telephone sex as abstinence. As a result, the results of our study shows' that, majority of students had abstinence which is the safe method for them.

Table 4.14 shows the types of contraceptive method used by the students easily get access to during the pandemic. Minority of the students shows that they abstinence from sex, one-third of the students used withdrawal method, also one-third used condom. Tiziana et al., (2022), who stated that, oral contraceptives and condoms, both used by 40% of emerging adults, are the most often used forms of contraception, with injections and withdrawal coming in at 7% and 19%, respectively and 6 % prolonged abstinence as a natural method.

Table 4. 15 shows the experience of student's unwanted pregnancy during the pandemic among university students. Majority of students indicated that yes, they have experienced of unwanted pregnancy during the pandemic. This was confirmed by Gebremariam et all, (2018)'s study shows that data suggests that 80 million women worldwide have unwanted pregnancies each year. WHO stated that unwanted pregnancies are more common among young individuals, with university students reporting the greatest prevalence of the condition, unwanted pregnancies account for one in three live births and over 40% of young women become mothers before turning 20. The social, political, and economic structures are vulnerable, which amplifies the pandemic's consequences. Particularly during lockdowns, there are stark differences in sexual desire amongst couples, with some using sex as a coping tool to maintain connection and reduce tension while others entirely lose interest in sex. To fulfill their fundamental requirements and deal with inadequate and limited income, people may turn to transactional sex, which increases the chance of unintended births. Their inability to manage their reproductive health is becoming acknowledged as a key mechanism driving a high risk of unintended pregnancies, which was further heightened during the COVID-19 epidemic. Due to rapidly depleting contraceptive supplies, first reports on COVID-19 show an increase in unintended and undesired births (Haddad et al., 2022). Around one-third of women's current pregnancies were unwanted, it was determined during the COVID-19 epidemic. The research discovered that unwanted pregnancy was substantially correlated with

respondents' age, autonomy to use contraceptive methods, and anxiety of going to a medical institution, (Molla et al., 2022). During the COVID-19 pandemic, there was a considerable rise in the number of adolescents who became pregnant and utilized the services of organizations that provide abortion treatment. This finding was corroborated by the study in Kenya, which found that 59% of teenage pregnancies were unplanned, and 45% of pregnancies ended with serious abortion difficulties during the COVID-19 epidemic. This study was conducted in Kenya (Kassie et al., 2021).

Table 4. 16 shows how the students end unwanted pregnancy during the pandemic. Majority of students said that, they give birth to babies. While the other minority sets of students said they do abortion and they represent 30.2%. This result was confirmed by Wang CL et al., (2021) who show that, in a screening of 836 children delivered to COVID-19 women, 35 (4.2%) tested positive for the virus using polymerase chain reaction (PCR). Gibelin, K et al., (2021) indicated that, out of the 124 practitioners, 28.2% conducted both medical and surgical abortions, while 71.8% solely performed medical abortions. Out of the 124 practitioners, 25.8% conducted medical abortions solely at hospitals and 62.1% only in clients' homes. The rate of ending unwanted pregnancy in our study was found high when we compare with other studies. Couples used to spend more free time together at home, which resulted in more closeness, whereas the majority of the globe is settling into a new pattern of social distance. Some couples who had intended to create a family before to the COVID-19 outbreak are still trying, while others have already begun to show this desire while confined. Some people use sex as a coping method to maintain connection and reduce anxiety. To fulfill their fundamental requirements and deal with inadequate and limited income, some people turn to transactional sex, which increases the chance of unintended births (Haddad et al., 2022). Table 4.17 students to having sexual intercourse without the use of a contraceptive method. Shows the problem students encountered during pregnancy termination. Majority of students said the problem they faced during pandemic, one in fifth encounter social condemnation, while 55 encounter interrupting education with a 15%. This study was confirmed by Sorhaindo et al., (2014) who indicated that, stigma surrounding abortion is viewed, felt, and handled differently depending on the social group. In a recent United States research, for instance, Hispanics were more likely than other racial and ethnic groups to feel shame from friends and family and to keep their abortion a secret. In fact, one in third of participants in this research said they would not continue to be friends with a woman who had an abortion. The majority of respondents (61%) in a survey with a nationally representative sample of Mexican Catholics had stigmatizing beliefs on abortion despite thinking that it should be permitted in some situations. In our study, the number of students was found very low who indicated family culture as a reason of termination pregnancy. Table 4. 18 shows effect of sexual life of students who said no change has an average mean of $1.04\pm .205$, and minimum of 1 and a maximum of 2. The result shows no change for sexual compatibility with an average mean of $1.27\pm .520$ and minimum of 1 and a maximum of 3. The study shows for affection of covid-19 on sexual life for moderate change, with and average mean of 1.94 ± 0.582 and the results show for sexual compatibility with an average mean of 2.16 ± 0.465 . The results shows' affection of sexual life for completely change with an average mean of 2.26 ± 0.642 and the results shows for sexual compatibility, with average mean of 2.47 ± 0.505 .

The study shows that there was a statistically significant change on the sexual life and sexual compatibility scores by the effect of covid-19 on sexual desire (p<0.05). The students who have completely changed the impact of covid-19 on sexual desire scored higher. Fuchs et al. (2020) found similar outcomes after surveying the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on the quality of women's sexual behavior and the frequency of their sexual contact in Poland. The majority of studies have found that the COVID-19 pandemic has different effects on men's and women's sexual functioning; for example, the results of the United Kingdom study by Wignall et al. (2021) show that men reported stronger sexual desire compared with women both before and during the lockdown. The results also suggest that sexual desire among women was much lower when the facility was under lockdown. Higher rates of sexual dysfunction and reduced sexual activity were shown to be connected with the restrictions associated with COVID-19. This onset may negatively impact both sexes (Masoudi et al., 2022).

CHAPTER VI

Conclusion and recommendations

6.1 Conclusion

It was revealed from the study that, majority of the students had covid-19 vaccination and majority of the students had sexual relationship during the pandemics. Most of the students had sex on a regular basis, and only a few had sexed every month. It was revealed that, the COVID-19 affected the sexual habits of the students. The sexual desire of most students decreased, while only one in forth of the students had their sexual desire increased. In our

study most of the students' abstinence from sex while other masturbated. As a result, 6% of the students used toy sex machines as a means of satisfying their sexual desires.

It was concluded that the pandemic affected the sexual behaviors of the students. Majority of the student's changed their sexual positions, avoided kissing each other during sex making, wore facemasks during sex making, and watched sex videos as a means of their sexual gratification instead of having sex. The study discovered that during the pandemic, the students were afraid to have sex. This is because they were afraid of getting STDs. When they get pregnant or impregnate someone, it will have an effect on their education and they will not be able to get their university degree. They were afraid to get COVID-19 and were not ready for any pregnancy. The study discovered that during COVID-19 brought moderate and complete changes in their sexual desires, sexual satisfaction, orgasm, lubrication, arousal, pain, and erection.

At the end of our study during the pandemic, the students had sexual relationship without using contraceptive methods and, students' used contraception as a means of preventing any unwanted pregnancies and contracting COVID. The majority of students used contraceptive methods were condoms, oral contraceptive pills and intrauterine devices. The study revealed that majority (61.0%) of the student's encountered problems with the use of contraceptive methods. The problems encountered are closures and cuts to sexual and reproductive health services; economic difficulties; and a lack of information and guidance on the method used. As a result, health professionals and especially nurses carry out education and counseling services on COVID-19 for young generation during the pandemics.

6. Recommendation

*In our study, majority of the students had sex without using the contraceptive methods. And, during the pandemic's student faced problem with reaching the methods. It is suggested that, long term contraceptive methods as IUDs and barrier methods should be available for the students during the pandemic and tele services should be given to the students.

* Students had some problems for reaching the contraceptive methods. Contraceptive methods can be reached by the students and, by the tele health services consultations and education services should be given to the students.

*A few students used sex toys and masturbated. But, during the pandemics the safest way is thought masturbation and sex toys. Students should be informed about using private sex toys and masturbation. If a sex toy was used more than one-person, hygienic precautions should be taken.

References

Aly, J., Haeger, K. O., Christy, A. Y., & Johnson, A. M. (2020). Contraception access during the COVID-19 pandemic. *Contraception and Reproductive Medicine*, 5(1), 1-9.

Adelekan, B., Goldson, E., Abubakar, Z., Mueller, U., Alayande, A., Ojogun, T.,& Okonofua, F. (2021). Effect of COVID-19 pandemic on provision of sexual and reproductive health services in primary health facilities in Nigeria: a cross-sectional study. *Reproductive health*, *18*(1), 1-12.

Aly, J. *et al.* (2020) "Contraception access during the COVID-19 pandemic," *Contraception and Reproductive Medicine*, 5(1). Available at: https://doi.org/10.1186/s40834-020-00114-9.

Aolymat, I. (2021). A cross-sectional study of the impact of COVID-19 on domestic violence, menstruation, genitaltract health, and contraception use among women in Jordan. *The American journal of tropical medicine and hygiene*, *104*(2), 519.

Auge, D., Hille, J., Mueller, E., & Knoll, A. (2021). A survey of encoding techniques for signal processing in spiking neural networks. *Neural Processing Letters*, 53(6), 4693-4710.

Bailey, M. J., Bart, L., & Lang, V. W. (2022). The missing baby bust: the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic for contraceptive use, pregnancy, and childbirth among low-income women. *Population research and policy review*, *41*(4), 1549-1569.

Banerjee, D., & Rao, T. S. (2020). Sexuality, sexual wellbeing, and intimacy during COVID-19

pandemic: an advocacy perspective. Indian journal of psychiatry, 62(4), 418.

Barello, S., Palamenghi, L., & Graffigna, G. (2020). Burnout and somatic symptoms among frontline healthcare professionals at the peak of the Italian COVID-19 pandemic. *Psychiatry research*, 290, 113129.

Baran, O., & Aykac, A. (2021). The effect of fear of covid-19 transmission on male sexual behaviour: A cross-sectional survey study. *International Journal of Clinical Practice*, 75(4), e13889.

Beksinska, A., Jama, Z., Kabuti, R., Kungu, M., Babu, H., Nyariki, E., ... & Kimani, J. (2021). Prevalence and correlates of common mental health problems and recent suicidal thoughts and behaviours among female sex workers in Nairobi, Kenya. *BMC psychiatry*, *21*(1), 1-17.

Berro Pizzarossa, L. (2018). Here to stay: the evolution of sexual and reproductive health and rights in international human rights law. *Laws*, 7(3), 29.

Broche-Pérez, Y., Fernández-Fleites, Z., Jiménez-Puig, E., Fernández-Castillo, E., & Rodríguez-Martin, B. (2022). Gender and fear of COVID-19 in a Cuban population sample. *International journal of mental head addiction*, 20(1), 83-91.

Byers, B. E., & Kroodsma, D. E. (2009). Female mate choice and songbird song repertoires. *Animal Behav* 77(1), 13-22.

Bishwajit, G., Tang, S., Yaya, S., & Feng, Z. (2017). Unmet need for contraception and its association with unintended pregnancy in Bangladesh. *BMC pregnancy and childbirth*, 17(1), 1-9.

Blackstone, S. R., Nwaozuru, U., & Iwelunmor, J. (2017). Factors influencing contraceptive use in sub-Saharan Africa: a systematic review. *International quarterly of community health education*, *37*(2), 79-91.

Caruso, S., Rapisarda, A. M. C., & Minona, P. (2020). Sexual activity and contraceptive use during social Distancing and self-isolation in the COVID-19 pandemic. *The European Journal of Contraception & Reproductive Health Care*, 25(6), 445-448.

Charles, C. M. P., Munezero, A., Bahamondes, L. G., & Pacagnella, R. C. (2022). Comparison of contraceptive sales before and during the COVID-19 pandemic in Brazil. *The European Journal of Contraception & Reproductive Health Care*, 1-6.

Church, K., Gassner, J., & Elliott, M. (2020). Reproductive health under COVID-19–challenges of responding in a global crisis. *Sexual and reproductive health matters*, 28(1), 1773163.

Coombe, J., Kong, F., Bittleston, H., Williams, H., Tomnay, J., Vaisey, A., ... & Hocking, J. S. (2021). Contraceptive use and pregnancy plans among women of reproductive age during the first Australian COVID-19 lockdown: findings from an online survey. *The European Journal of Contraception* & *Reproductive Health Care*, *26*(4), 265-271.

Corman, V. M., Landt, O., Kaiser, M., Molenkamp, R., Meijer, A., Chu, D. K., ... & Drosten, C. (2020). Detection of 2019 novel coronavirus (2019-nCoV) by real-time RT-PCR. *Eurosurveillance*, 25(3), 2000045

DebRoy, T., T. Mukherjee, H. L. Wei, J. W. Elmer, and J. O. Milewski. "Metallurgy, mechanistic models and machine learning in metal printing." *Nature Reviews Materials* 6, no. 1 (2021): 48-68.

Dragoman, M., Ghimpu, L., Obreja, C., Dinescu, A., Plesco, I., Dragoman, D., ... & Tiginyanu, I. (2016). Ultra-lightweight pressure sensor based on graphene aerogel decorated with piezoelectric nanocrystalline films. *Nanotechnology*, *27*(47), 475203.

Emery, T., & Koops, J. C. (2022). The impact of COVID-19 on fertility behaviour and intentions in a middle income country. *Plos one*, *17*(1), e0261509.

Fegert, J. M., Vitiello, B., Plener, P. L., & Clemens, V. (2020). Challenges and burden of the Coronavirus 2019(COVID-19) pandemic for child and adolescent mental health: a narrative review to highlight clinical and research needs in the acute phase and the long return to normality. *Child and adolescent psychiatry and mental health*, *14*, 1-11.

Flesia, L., Monaro, M., Mazza, C., Fietta, V., Colicino, E., Segatto, B., & Roma, P. (2020). Predicting perceived stress related to the Covid-19 outbreak through stable psychological traits and machine learning models. *Journal of clinical medicine*, *9*(10), 3350

Foreman, K. J., Marquez, N., Dolgert, A., Fukutaki, K., Fullman, N., McGaughey, M., ... & Murray, C. J. (2018).

Forecasting life expectancy, years of life lost, and all-cause and cause-specific mortality for 250 causes of death: reference and alternative scenarios for 2016–40 for 195 countries and territories. *The Lancet*, *392*(10159), 2052-2090.

Fornes, O., Castro-Mondragon, J. A., Khan, A., Van der Lee, R., Zhang, X., Richmond, P. A., ... & Mathelier, A. (2020). JASPAR 2020: update of the open-access database of transcription factor binding profiles. *Nucleic acids research*, *48*(D1), D87-D92.

Fu, L., Karp, M., Bose, S. T., Moin, P., & Urzay, J. (2021). Shock-induced heating and transition to turbulence in a hypersonic boundary layer. *Journal of Fluid Mechanics*, 909, A8.

Fuchs, A., Szul, M., Dulska, A., Bodziony, J., Matonóg, A., Pilarska, J., ... & Drosdzol-Cop, A. (2022). The Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic on Female Sexual Function. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, *19*(6), 3349.

Gebremariam, S. N., & Marchetti, J. M. (2018). Biodiesel production through sulfuric acid catalyzed transesterification of acidic oil: Techno economic feasibility of different process alternatives. *Energy Conversion and Management*, *174*, 639-648.

Gibelin, K., Agostini, A., Marcot, M., Piclet, H., Bretelle, F., & Miquel, L. (2021). COVID-19 impact in abortions' practice, a regional French evaluation. *Journal of gynecology obstetrics and human reproduction*, *50*(5), 102038.

Gichuna, S., Hassan, R., Sanders, T., Campbell, R., Mutonyi, M., & Mwangi, P. (2020). Access to

Healthcare in a time of COVID-19: Sex Workers in Crisis in Nairobi, Kenya. *Global Public Health*, *15*(10), 1430-1442.

Haddad, L. M., Annamaraju, P., & Toney-Butler, T. J. (2022). Nursing shortage. In *StatPearls [Internet]*. StatPearls Publishing.

Hoover, D. L., Hajek, O. L., Smith, M. D., Wilkins, K., Slette, I. J., & Knapp, A. K. (2022). Compound hydroclimatic extremes in a semi-arid grassland: Drought, deluge, and the carbon cycle. *Global Change Biology*, 28(8), 2611-2621.

Kaestle, C. E., & Allen, K. R. (2011). The role of masturbation in healthy sexual development: Perceptions of young adults. *Archives of sexual behavior*, 40(5), 983-994.

Karp, C., Wood, S. N., Galadanci, H., Kibira, S. P. S., Makumbi, F., Omoluabi, E., ... & Moreau, C. (2020). 'I am the master key that opens and locks': Presentation and application of a conceptual framework for women's and girls' empowerment in reproductive health. *Social Science & Medicine*, *258*, 113086

Kassie, A., Wale, A., & Yismaw, W. (2021). Impact of coronavirus Diseases-2019 (COVID-19) on utilization and outcome of reproductive, maternal, and newborn health services at governmental health facilities in South West Ethiopia, 2020: comparative cross-sectional study. *International journal of women's health*, 479-488.

Kebede, A., Abaya, S. G., Merdassa, E., & Bekuma, T. T. (2019). Factors affecting demand for modern contraceptives among currently married reproductive age women in rural Kebeles of Nunu Kumba district, Oromia, Ethiopia. *Contraception and Reproductive Medicine*, 4(1), 1-15.

Kebede, M. A., Anbessie, B., & Ayano, G. (2019). Prevalence and predictors of depression and anxiety among medical students in Addis Ababa, Ethiopia. *International journal of mental health systems*, *13*(1), 1-8.

Khan, N., & Faisal, S. (2020). Epidemiology of Corona virus in the world and its effects on the China economy. *Available at SSRN 3548292*.

Kilic, S., Lezaja, A., Gatti, M., Bianco, E., Michelena, J., Imhof, R., & Altmeyer, M. (2019). Phase separation of 53 BP 1 determines liquid-like behavior of DNA repair compartments. *The EMBO journal*, *38*(16), e101379.

Kim, S., Chen, J., Cheng, T., Gindulyte, A., He, J., He, S., ... & Bolton, E. E. (2021). PubChem in 2021: new data content and improved web interfaces. *Nucleic acids research*, *49*(D1), D1388-D1395.

Kirwan, R., McCullough, D., Butler, T., Perez de Heredia, F., Davies, I. G., & Stewart, C. (2020). Sarcopenia during COVID-19 lockdown restrictions: long-term health effects of short-term muscle loss. *GeroScience*, 42(6), 1547-1578.

Krubiner, C. B., Faden, R. R., Karron, R. A., Little, M. O., Lyerly, A. D., Abramson, J. S., ... &

PREVENT Working Group. (2021). Pregnant women & vaccines against emerging epidemic threats: ethics guidance for preparedness, research, and response. *Vaccine*, *39*(1), 85-120.

Li, G., Tang, D., Song, B., Wang, C., Qunshan, S., Xu, C., ... & Cao, Y. (2020). Impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on partner relationships and sexual and reproductive health: cross-sectional, online survey study. *Journal of medical Internet research*, *22*(8), e20961.

Lindberg, L. D., VandeVusse, A., Mueller, J., & Kirstein, M. (2020). Early impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic: findings from the 2020 Guttmacher survey of reproductive health experiences.

Lucia, C., Federico, P. B., & Alejandra, G. C. (2020). An ultrasensitive, rapid, and portable coronavirus SARS-CoV-2 sequence detection method based on CRISPR-Cas12. *BioRxiv*, 2020-02.

Márquez, E. J., Chung, C. H., Marches, R., Rossi, R. J., Nehar-Belaid, D., Eroglu, A., ... & Ucar, D. (2020). Sexual-dimorphism in human immune system aging. *Nature communications*, 11(1), 751.

Masoudi, M., Maasoumi, R., & Bragazzi, N. L. (2022). Effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on sexual functioning and activity: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *BMC Public Health*, 22(1), 189.

Mazza, C., Ricci, E., Biondi, S., Colasanti, M., Ferracuti, S., Napoli, C., & Roma, P. (2020). A nationwide survey of psychological distress among Italian people during the COVID-19 pandemic: immediate psychological responses and associated factors. *International journal of environmental research and public health*, *17*(9), 3165.

Molla, A., Ren, Y., Zuo, S., Qiu, Y., Li, L., Zhang, Q., ... & Zhou, Y. (2022). Evaluating sample sizes and design for monitoring and characterizing the spatial variations of potentially toxic elements in the soil. *Science of The Total Environment*, *847*, 157489.

Mushy, S. E., Rosser, B. S., Ross, M. W., Lukumay, G. G., Mgopa, L. R., Bonilla, Z., ... & Leshabari, S. (2021). The management of masturbation as a sexual health issue in Dar es Salaam, Tanzania: a qualitative study of health professionals' and medical students' perspectives. *The Journal of Sexual Medicine*, *18*(10), 1690-1697.

Mwale, M., & Muula, A. S. (2017). Systematic review: a review of adolescent behavior change interventions [BCI] and their effectiveness in HIV and AIDS prevention in sub-Saharan Africa. *BMC public health*, *17*(1), 1-9.

Mwanangombe, C., Mundende, K., Muzata, K. K., Muleya, G., & Francis Simui, V. K. (2020). Peeping into the pot of contraceptives utilization among adolescents within a conservative culture Zambia.

Orben, A., Tomova, L., & Blakemore, S. J. (2020). The effects of social deprivation on adolescent development and mental health. *The Lancet Child & Adolescent Health*, 4(8), 634-640.

Pan, S. L., & Zhang, S. (2020). From fighting COVID-19 pandemic to tackling sustainable development goals: An opportunity for responsible information systems research. *International journal of information management*, *55*, 102196.

Prabowo, K. A., Ellenzy, G., Wijaya, M. C., & Kloping, Y. P. (2021). Impact of work from home policy during the COVID-19 pandemic on mental health and reproductive health of women in Indonesia. *International Journal of Sexual Health*, 1-10.

Räuchle, J., Briken, P., Schröder, J., & Ivanova, O. (2022). Sexual and reproductive health during the COVID-19 pandemic: Results from a cross-sectional online survey in Germany. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, *19*(3), 1428.

Riley, T., Sully, E., Ahmed, Z., & Biddlecom, A. (2020). Estimates of the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on sexual and reproductive health in low-and middle-income countries. *International perspectives on sexual and reproductive health*, *46*, 73-76.

Rossi, A., Panzeri, A., Pietrabissa, G., Manzoni, G. M., Castelnuovo, G., & Mannarini, S. (2020). The anxiety-buffer hypothesis in the time of COVID-19: when self-esteem protects from the impact of loneliness and fear on anxiety and depression. *Frontiers in psychology*, *11*, 2177

Roy, A., Saffar, M., Vaswani, A., & Grangier, D. (2021). Efficient content-based sparse attention with routing transformers. *Transactions of the Association for Computational Linguistics*, 9, 53-68.

Izdebski, A., Guzowski, P., Poniat, R., Masci, L., Palli, J., Vignola, C., ... & Masi, A. (2022). Palaeoecological data indicates land-use changes across Europe linked to spatial heterogeneity in mortality during the Black Death pandemic. *Nature Ecology & Evolution*, *6*(3), 297-306.

Lehmiller, J. J. (2020). Fantasies about consensual nonmonogamy among persons in monogamous Romantic relationships. *Archives of sexual behavior*, 1-14.

Márquez, E. J., Chung, C. H., Marches, R., Rossi, R. J., Nehar-Belaid, D., Eroglu, A., ... & Ucar, D. (2020). Sexual-dimorphism in human immune system aging. *Nature communications*, *11*(1), 751.

Skouby, S. O. (2004). Contraceptive use and behavior in the 21st century: a comprehensive study across five European countries. *The European Journal of Contraception & Reproductive Health Care*, 9(2), 57-68.

Sorhaindo, A. M., Juárez-Ramírez, C., Olavarrieta, C. D., Aldaz, E., Mejía Piñeros, M. C., & Garcia, S. (2014). Qualitative evidence on abortion stigma from Mexico City and five states in Mexico. *Women & Health*, *54*(7),622-640.

Santas, E., Valero, E., Mollar, A., García-Blas, S., Palau, P., Miñana, G., ... & Núñez, J. (2017). Burden of recurrent hospitalizations following an admission for acute heart failure: preserved versus reduced ejection fraction. *Revista Española de Cardiología (English Edition)*, 70(4), 239-246.

Schultz, S. R., Ruter, R. L., & Tibor, L. C. (2016). Lean management systems in radiology: elements for success. *Radiol Manage*, *38*(2), 23-30.

Shadmi, E., Chen, Y., Dourado, I., Faran-Perach, I., Furler, J., Hangoma, P., ... & Willems, S. (2020). Health equity and COVID-19: global. *International* perspectives *journal for equity in health*, 19(1), 1-16.

Shaikh, S., Yaqoob, M., & Aggarwal, P. (2021). An overview of biodegradable packaging in food industry. *Current Research in Food Science*, *4*, 503-520.

Shojaaddini Ardakani, T., Amiri Tooran Poshti, B., & Amiri Tooran Poshti, B. (2021). Effect of Covid-19 Pandemic on Women's Reproductive Health Components: A Narrative Review. *Journal of Midwifery and Reproductive Health*, 9(3), 2782-2790.

Stavridou, A., Kapsali, E., Panagouli, E., Thirios, A., Polychronis, K., Bacopoulou, F., ... & Tsitsika, A. (2021). Obesity in children and adolescents during COVID-19 pandemic. *Children*, 8(2), 135.

Stavridou, A., Stergiopoulou, A. A., Panagouli, E., Mesiris, G., Thirios, A., Mougiakos, T., ... & Tsitsika, A Psychosocial consequences of COVID-19 in children, adolescents and young adults: a systematic review. *Psychiatry and Clinical Neurosciences*, 74(11), 615.

Tiziana, G., Maria, P. R., Giuseppe, T., & Marco, A. (2022). Identification of the novel HLA-DPA1* 01: 88 by next-generation sequencing. *Hla*, *100*(4), 405.

Vedam, S., Stoll, K., Taiwo, T. K., Rubashkin, N., Cheyney, M., Strauss, N., ... & Declercq, E. (2019). The Giving Voice to Mothers study: inequity and mistreatment during pregnancy and childbirth in the United States. *Reproductive health*, *16*(1), 1-18.

Vora, K. S., & Saiyed, S. (2020). Cervical cancer screening in India: Need of the hour. *Cancer Research, Statistics, and Treatment*, 3(4), 796-797.

Wang, C. L., Wu, C. H., Wang, C. Y., Wang, C. H., & Long, C. Y. (2021). Impact of COVID-19 on Pregnancy. *International journal of medical sciences*, 18(3), 763.

Wignall, L., Portch, E., McCormack, M., Owens, R., Cascalheira, C. J., Attard-Johnson, J., & Cole, T. (2021). Changes in sexual desire and behaviors among UK young adults during social lockdown due to COVID-19. *The Journal of Sex Research*, *58*(8), 976-985.

Wilkinson, T. A., Kottke, M. J., & Berlan, E. D. (2020). Providing contraception for young people during a Wood, S. N., Karp, C., OlaOlorun, F., Pierre, A. Z., Guiella, G., Gichangi, P., ... & Moreau, C. (2021).
Need for and use of contraception by women before and during COVID-19 in four sub-Saharan African geographies: results from population-based national or regional cohort surveys. *The Lancet Global Health*, 9(6), e793-e801.

World Health Organization. (2020). *Pulse survey on continuity of essential health services during the COVID-19 pandemic: interim report, 27 August 2020* (No. WHO/2019-nCoV/EHS_continuity/survey/2020.1). World Health Organization.

Wright, K. O., Wusu, O., Akinyinka, M., Adebayo, B., Adepoju, F., Bashir, K., ... & Banke-Thomas, A. O. Use of modern contraceptives in Lagos Nigeria during the COVID-19 pandemic. *Health care for women international*, *43*(4), 382-397.

Appendices

Appendix A

The effect of COVID-19 pandemic on students' sexual life and contraceptive method use

Dear students,

This questionnaire is for Memunat Olayinka Oduwaye (20204387) master thesis. I kindly request from you to fill the questionnaire sincerely. Answering the questionnaire will take only 10 minutes. This questionnaire is basically on the effects of <u>Covid-19 on student's sexual life and contraceptive method use during pandemic</u>. This questionnaire can be answered by only <u>sexually active female and male students</u> (you should think only for your sexuality from the starting of pandemic till now (last two years). Please do not answer the questionnaire IF YOU ARE NOT SEXUALLY ACTIVE BEFORE AND DURING PANDEMIC. Participating in the research is confidential. All the information obtained from the questionnaire will be used only for the thesis and your privacy will be protected. Thank you.

1. What is your gender?

- a) Male
- b) Female
- 2. Please specify your age?
 - -

3. What is your department or faculty name?

.....

- 4. Please indicate your academic year.
 - a) 1st
 - b) 2nd
 - c) 3rd
 - d) 4th
 - 5. Please mark the choice you are living with?
 - a) Alone
 - b) Friends
 - c) Family
 - d) Spouse
 - e) Fiance
 - f) Others (Please explain)
- 6. Do you have any chronic disease?
- a) Yes b) No
- IF YES PLEASE SPECIFY
- 7. Have you had Covid-19?
- a) Yes b) No
- 8. Have you had Covid-19 vaccination?
- a) Yes b) No
- 9. Do you have **<u>sexual relationship before the pandemic</u>**?

- a) Yes
- b) No

10. Do you have sexual relationship during the pandemic?

- a) Yes
- b) No
- 11. What is your marital status?
 - a) Single with regular partner
 - b) Single with irregular partners
 - c) Married

12. What is your sexual activity frequency **before the pandemic**?

a) Every day

- b) Ones in two days
- c) Ones in three days
- d) Ones in four days
- e) Ones in five days
- f) Ones in six days
- g) Ones in seven days
- h) Ones in fifteen days
- 1) Monthly

13. What is your sexual activity frequency <u>during the pandemic</u>?

- a) Every day
- b) Ones in two days
- c) Ones in three days
- d) Ones in four days
- e) Ones in five days
- f) Ones in six days
- g) Ones in seven days
- h) Ones in fifteen days
- 1) Monthly

14. How did Covid-19 pandemic has affected your sexual habit?

- a) My sexual desire decreased
- b) My sexual desire increased
- c) I used sex toys instead of having sex with other gender
- d) I used masturbation
- e) Not effected
- 15. How did Covid-19 pandemic has affected your sexual behavior?
 - a) I changed my sexual position
 - b) I avoided kissing
 - c) I wear face masks during the sex
 - d) I watched sex videos instead of having sex
 - e) I preferred mobile or video sex instead of sexual intercourse

16. During pandemic did you have fear of having sexual relationship?

-Yes -No (<u>If NO Skip question numbered 17</u>)

17. Please mark **the right choice/choices** related to your reason of fear on sexual intercourse during Covid-19 pandemic? (You can mark <u>more than one choice</u>)

- a) Being infected with STD's
- b) Unwanted pregnancy
- c) Being infected with Covid-19
- d) Can't attend my university education
- e) Other (Please explain)

18. Please mark your sexual desire change during the pandemic on the line which is given below **Zero mean no change, 5 mean moderate, 10 mean completely changed**). (This question should be answered by both female and male)

0-1--2--3--4--5--6--7--8--9-10

Question 19 to 24 will be answered by both Men and women.

19. Please score your difficulty to achieve orgasm according to your pre-pandemic experiences (*Zero mean no change, 5 mean moderate, 10 mean completely changed*).

0-1--2--3--4--5--6--7--8--9--10

20. Please score your lubrication level according to your pre-pandemic experiences (Zero mean no change, 5 mean moderate, 10 mean completely changed)

0-1--2--3--4--5--6--7--8--9-10

21. Please score your Arousal level according to your pre-pandemic experiences (Zero mean no change, 5 mean moderate, 10 mean completely changed)

22. Please score your satisfaction level according to your pre-pandemic experiences (Zero mean no change, 5 mean moderate, 10 mean completely changed)

23. Please score your pain level according to your pre-pandemic experiences (Zero mean no change, 5 mean moderate, 10 mean completely changed)

0-1--2--3--4--5--6--7--8--9-10

24. Please score your Erection (For men only) level according to your pre-pandemic experiences (Zero mean no change, 5 mean moderate, 10 mean completely changed)

0-1--2--3--4--5--6--7--8--9-10

25. Did you use any contraceptive method during pandemics?

a) Yes

b) No (IF NO Skip question numbered 26, 27, 28, 29 and 30)

26. If YES which of the contraceptive method/methods have you used? Please mark (<u>You</u> can mark more than one choice).

- a) Condoms
- b) Oral contraceptives pills
- c) Intrauterine Device
- d) Injections
- e) Implants
- f) Diaphragm
- g) Withdrawal method
- h) Other (Please explain)

27. During pandemic, did you have any problem with the contraceptive method use?

- a) Yes
- b) No (If NO Skip question numbered 29)
- 28. If YES what kind of problems did you face?
- a) Lack of having information and guidance
- b) Closures and cuts to sexual and reproductive health service
- c) Economic difficulties

d) Others (Please explain)

29. During the pandemics do you have sexual Intercourse <u>without using any form of</u> <u>contraceptive method?</u>

- a) Yes
- b) No (If NO skip question number 31)

30. During pandemics in the absence of access to any contraceptive method what other method did you use?

- a) Abstinence from sex
- b) Masturbation
- c) I/my partner used withdrawal method
- d) Sex toys
- e) I continued unprotected intercourse
- f) Others (Please explain)

31. What type of contraceptive method/methods did you get easily during covid-19 pandemic?

(You can mark more than one choice)

- a) Abstinence
- b) Withdrawal
- c) Condoms
- d) Pills
- e) Intra uterine device
- f) Diagram
- g) Emergency contraceptive pills
- h) Implant
- 1) Other (Please explain)
- 32. Have you or your partner had an experience of unwanted pregnancy

during the pandemic?

a) Yes

b) No (If NO Skip question numbered 33, 34 and 35)

33. How did you/partner end unwanted pregnancy?

a) Giving birth a baby

b) Abortion

c) Other (Please explain)

34. Have you had a problem for termination of the pregnancy?

a) Yes b) No (<u>If NO skip question number 36</u>)

35. What was the **problem for termination of pregnancy**?

- a) Economic factors
- b) Social condemnation
- c) Interrupting education
- d) Other (Please explain)

36. With regards to show how pandemics has affected your sexual life quality. Please mark on the line is given below. Zero mean no change, 5 mean moderate change and 10 mean completely change.

0--1-2-3-4-5-6-7-8-9----10

37. Please mark the sexual compatibility with your partner during Covid-19 pandemics on the diagram is given below. (Zero mean no change, 5 mean moderate change and 10 mean completely change).

0-1--2-3-4-5-6-7-8-9----10

APPENDIX B

YAKIN DOĞU ÜNİVERSİTESİ BİLİMSEL ARAŞTIRMALAR ETİK KURULU

ARAŞTIRMA PROJESİ DEĞERLENDİRME RAPORU

Toplantı Tarihi	:28.04.2022
Toplantı No	:2022/102
Proje No	:1552

Yakın Doğu Üniversitesi Hemşirelik Fakültesi öğretim üyelerinden Prof. Dr. Gülşen Vural'ın sorumlu araştırmacısı olduğu, YDU/2022/102-1552 proje numaralı ve "The effect of COVID-19 pandemic on students' sexual life and contraceptive method use" başlıklı proje önerisi kurulumuzca değerlendirilmiş olup, etik olarak uygun bulunmuştur.

L. Laur Prof. Dr. Şanda Çalı

Yakın Doğu Üniversitesi Bilimsel Araştırmalar Etik Kurulu Başkanı

Kurul Üyesi	Toplantıya Katılım	Karar
	Katıldı(✔)/ Katılmadı(X)	Onay(✓)/ Ret(X)
Prof. Dr. Tamer Yılmaz	/	\checkmark
Prof. Dr. Şahan Saygı	× .	/
Prof. Dr. Nurhan Bayraktar	1	\checkmark
Prof. Dr. Mehmet Özmenoğlu	\checkmark	
Prof. Dr. İlker Etikan	1	
Doç. Dr. Mehtap Tınazlı	1	/
Doç. Dr. Nilüfer Galip Çelik	1	/
Doç. Dr. Emil Mammadov	1	1
Doç. Dr. Ali Cenk Özay	X	X

https://etikkurul.neu.edu.tr/



Hemşirelik Fakültesi Dekanlığına,

Doğum Kadın Sağlığı ve Hastalıkları Hemşireliği Yüksek Lisans öğrencisi MEMUNAT OLAINKA ODUWAYE isimli öğrencinin İktisadi ve İdari Bilimler Fakültesi Bankacılık ve Finans bölümü lisans öğrencilere "The effects of Covid-19 pandemic on students' sexual life and contraceptive method use" isimli anketi uygulanması uygun bulunuştur.

0 0 0 (DAR) 42 A 1988 Prof. Dr. Şerife Eyüpoğlu Dekan

İktisadi ve İdari Bilimler Fakültesi